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Simplified Corporate Chart

NGIEY A LES

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the

date of this report.

Hi Sun Technology
(China) Ltd
Stock Code: 818

Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited
(Telecommunication solutions)

Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT LTD
(Payment solutions)

** Established in 1st quarter 2009

Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Company
Limited
(Electronic power meters
and solutions)

Beijing Hi Sun
Advanced Business
Solutions Information

Technology Limited
(Financial solutions)

Hi Sun Value-added
Solutions and Services
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Pax Technology Limited
(Electronic payment
products and services)
(“EDC-POS Terminals”)

PAX Transaction Data
Capture Terminals
and Solutions
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Simplified Corporate Chart
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present Hi Sun's Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2009 ("the Year").

In 2009, the Group's turnover amounted to
HK$1,278.52 million, representing a growth of 5%
compared to 2008. Operating profit was HK$144.23
million and profit attributable to shareholders was
HK$85.85 million (HK$0.035 per share). During the
year, the Group has substantially increased our input
in R&D by HK$52.32 million for the development
of innovative products and enhancement of quality
of our existing products in response to the rapid
evolution of business models in the industry and
customers’ increasing demand in first-tier products
and services.

Our EDC-POS terminals recorded turnover of
HK$492.94 million in 2009, a similar level as compared
with last year, with new record of total shipment over
300,000 units in 2009. Segmental operating profit
dropped by 15% to HK$100.51 million. During the
year, the management has input additional investment
in the R&D area, while R&D costs rose by 83%
compared to 2008, and amounted to HK$24.15
million, with more exertion placed in development of
new products such as our latest multi-lane terminals
and contactless devices. Persistent force from the
Chinese government to modernize the country's
payment infrastructure and to improve the acceptance
of card payments, are expected to drive the demand
of our products.
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2009 was a year of challenges and opportunities to
our electronic power meters and solutions segment,
while its performance was adversely impacted by
the holding up of various procurement plans by
the electricity companies, awaiting for more details
regarding the national electricity network development
and reformation plan. Segmental revenues dropped
28% to HK$253.59 million, while segmental operating
profit declined by 84%, to HK$6.68 million. In 2009,
State Grid decided to centralize the procurement
of power meters and associated metering systems
through a new procurement model. The first
tender made under the new procurement model
was concluded in December 2009 and was for
approximately 2.9 million single phase and three
phase electronic power meters. In terms of volume,
we were ranked first amongst all tender winners and
successfully bid for approximately 14.5% of the total
tender volume.

In 2009, the telecommunication solutions segment
recorded revenues of HK$359.65 million, a growth of
45%. Our service of MDO platform started to generate
income in the 2H2009, bringing us additional turnover
of over HK$50 million. Segmental operating profit
increased to HK$137.41 million as compared to
HK$125.07 million in 2008. IVVR and MDO business
are expected to contribute additional revenue to the
segment in 2010.

The financial solutions segment reported revenues
of HK$148.97 million in 2009, a growth of 24%
compared to last year's HK$120.61 million. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$7.25 million as
compared to operating loss of HK$44.53 million
in 2008. The new management team successfully
implemented various measures to achieve better
operational efficiency. New sources of income were
brought into the business with the development
of cross-industry value added solutions, including
industrial advisory, business operation solutions,
system development and operation services, and
other outsourcing services.
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In addition, with the unique position of Hi Sun and
the remarkable synergy among our various segments,
we have established a new subsidiary, Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT Ltd. ("Mobile Pay") in March 2009,
providing nation-wide mobile payment platform and
payment solutions to China Mobile. During the year,
segmental revenue amounted to HK$22.45 million,
and an operating loss of HK$46.21 million. It was
mainly due to start up costs and pre-operating
expenses while the service was fully launched in 2010
in all provinces in the PRC.

Looking forward, we believe that there is enormous
room for growth in various businesses. With our
strong financial position, the Group is going to
regain its momentum with various existing business
opportunities ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my utmost gratitude to our
customers, bankers, suppliers, business associates
and most valued shareholders for their continuous
trust and support to the Group. Particularly, | would
like to welcome Mr. Yang Lei, Raymond and Mr.
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, who have been appointed
as the non-executive directors of the Company in
November 2009.

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2010
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As at 12 March 2010, the date of the Report of the
Directors, the biographical details of the directors and
senior management of the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, aged 63, is the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at Peking
University in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and worked as a professor at Peking University
thereafter. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Cheung was a chairman of a company listed in the
PRC and a director of a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) and has working experience
in international trade, finance, asset management
and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was honoured
many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China,
and won the first prize of national golden award for
enterprise initiators in the 4th National Technology
Industrialist Award and many other awards.

KUl MAN CHUN

Mr. Kui, aged 44, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. He graduated
from Peking University in the PRC with a master
degree in international relations and has over 20
years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of Hi Sun Limited
(“HSL”), the Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior
to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the president
of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in
2000.
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XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, aged 41, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from the Dalian University
of Technology with a bachelor degree in computer
science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also the director
of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu
was the president of a system integration company
and has an extensive experience in computer systems
integration of the financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, aged 46, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in
the PRC with a master degree in law. He has over 15
years of experience in investment and administrative
affairs. Mr. Li is also the managing director of HSL.
Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for
several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in 2000.

XU CHANG JUN

Mr. Xu, aged 43, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Peking University in the
PRC with a master degree in international economics.
Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu had worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management of enterprise in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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Non-executive Directors

YANG LEI, RAYMOND

Mr. Yang, aged 52, is a non-executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Department
of Electrical Engineering of Tsinghua University
with a bachelor degree and the graduate school of
Electrical Power Research Institute (EPRI) of China
with a master degree. Mr. Yang is the founding
partner and managing director of WestSummit Capital
Management, which is an investment management
and advisory firm focusing on global technology
investment. Prior to his establishment of WestSummit
Capital he was the founding partner and Managing
director of Navi Capital Partner. Mr. Yang was a
venture partner at Northern Light Venture Capital,
and joined Linktone Ltd. (the first Chinese wireless
entertainment company on NASDAQ) in March 2003
as Chief Executive Officer. He joined the Group in
2009.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, aged 55, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University
of Texas at Austin with a bachelor degree in Statistics
and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more
than 15 years of experience in electronic payments
industry in Southeast Asia, Japan and the PRC.
Mr. Chang is currently a general manager of the
operations of VISA Inc. (“VISA”) in the PRC. He was
the executive vice president and general manager of
VISA’s operations in Japan, senior vice president and
general manager of its operations in the PRC and
Philippines, vice president & senior country manager
of its operations in Singapore, Thailand, Philippines,
Indochina. He joined the Group in 2009.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor of
arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and
has over 20 years’ experience in auditing, corporate
advisory services as well as financial management and
compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently the Executive
Director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a
major red chip company listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He joined the Group
in 2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He obtained a bachelor
degree in Law and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He also
obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University
of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since 1984 and is
now a partner of the law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung &
Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in England
and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary
public in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive
working experience in law both in Hong Kong and
in Canada. He served as a member of the Inland
Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting
Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently
an independent non-executive director of a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He joined
the Group in 2004.
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XU SITAO

Mr. Xu, aged 46, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking
University in the PRC with a bachelor of arts degree in
economics and from the University of Connecticut with
a master of arts degree in economics. He also holds
a master of science degree in Finance from Boston
College. Mr. Xu is currently the Chief Representative
China of the Economist Group and a director of
Advisory Services (China) of Economist Intelligence
Unit. Prior to the Economist Group, he was a senior
economist at Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from May 2003
to May 2004 and was the Chief Asian Economist of
Societe Generale from September 2000 to November
2002. Between 1996 and 2000, he was a Regional
Treasury Economist at Standard Chartered Bank.
Prior to that, he was an Emerging Asia Economist of
Standard & Poor’s MMS International in Singapore.
He joined the Group in 2001.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Messrs
Li Xiaoguang, Shen Zheng, Nie Guoming, Jiang
Hongchun and Miss Hui Lok Yan were the Company’s
senior management.

LI XIAOGUANG

Mr. Li, aged 47, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Beijing Hi Sunsray Information Technology Limited. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a
master’s degree in Computer Science. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Li was a member of a company’s
senior management in Beijing. He has over 20 years
of experience in corporate management.
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SHEN ZHENG

Mr. Shen, aged 38, is the Chief Executive Officer
of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions
Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from University of Beijing with degree in Information
Management. He has over 15 years of experience in
payment industry and financial industry.

NIE GUOMING

Mr. Nie, aged 47, is the President of Pax Technology
Limited. He graduated from Tsinghua University with
a bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering and from
Southeast University in PRC with a master degree
in Electronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of
experience in the payment industry.

JIANG HONGCHUN
Mr. Jiang, aged 39, is the Chief Executive Officer of
Hangzhou Pax Electricity Technology Limited. He
graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He
has over 15 years of experience in banking solutions
and meter solutions.

HUI LOK YAN

Miss. Hui, aged 31, is the Group Deputy Financial
Controller and Joint Company Secretary of the
Company. She graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Business
Administration. Miss. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, she
was a manager of an international public accountancy
firm.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance
of its Board of Directors (“Board”) in ensuring
effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good
corporate governance to the Company’s healthy
growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles (“Principles”) and code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied in formulating its corporate
governance practices the Principles and complied
with most of the Code Provisions for the year and
up to the date of this report save for the limited
deviation(s) on the grounds and causes explained
below.

The Company periodically reviews its organisational
structure to ensure that operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices
of the Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is
vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All directors should make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters
of the Company which include the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All directors are provided with full and timely access
to board papers and relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to
the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
senior management. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the senior management
officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company and to the exercising
of independent judgement.

The Board currently comprises 10 members, consisting
of 5 executive directors, 2 non-executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Chang Jun

Non-executive directors:
YANG Lei, Raymond
(appointed on 26 November 2009)
CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard
(appointed on 26 November 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman of Audit Committee)
Leung Wai Man, Roger (Member of Audit Committee)
Xu Sitao (Member of Audit Committee)
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The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The biographical information of the directors of the
Company and their relationship among the members
of the Board of the Company, if any, are provided in
the “Directors and Senior Management” section of
this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, which confirmed to the Company that
he has met the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board. By taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning
of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered
and transparent procedures for the appointment and
succession planning of directors.
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Code provision A.4.1 of CG Code stipulates that non-
executive Director should be appointed for a specific
term subject to re-election.

All directors, including non-executive directors, of the
Company are appointed for specific tenures which
shall expire with retirement by rotation once every
three years and subject to re-election.

On 18 April 2009, formal service contracts have
been entered into between the Company and each
of the independent non-executive Directors, further
limiting the term of such Directors to 1 year from their
respective appointment or their earlier retirement,
resignation or removal.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company.
Besides, the Company shall consider to engage
external legal and other professional advisors for
providing professional development and training
programmes to directors on an occasional basis.

Board Meetings and Directors’
Attendance

Regular Board meetings were held four times during
the year for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, for approving the final results
for the year ended 31 December 2008, interim results
for the period ended 30 June 2009 and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

In addition, the Board held 27 meetings for formulating
policies and implementing laid-down policies during
the year ended 31 December 2009.
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The individual attendance record of each director
at the meetings of the Board and Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2009 is set out
below:
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RIRCERELSILAT -

Attendance/Number of meetings

BRHEBIRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee = Committee = Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings Regular
ENZE® RERZE® FMZEE Meetings  Others
Name of Directors EERS 23 = o ERER Hitr
Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 4/18
TNEH MEH NEH
Kui Man Chun EBH N/A N/A N/A 4/4 4/18
TEH TNEH NEH
Xu Wensheng BrXHE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 10/18
TEH TNEH NEH
Li Wenjin VG N/A 11 2/2 4/4 18/18
TEH
Xu Chang Jun %®EE N/A N/A N/A 4/4 10/18
TEH TEH NEH
Yang Lei, Raymond g N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/18
(Note 1) (Hizt1) TEH NMEH TEA TEH
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIS E N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/18
(Note 1) (Hizt1) NiEH MEA NEH NiEH
Tam Chun Fai EixE 2/2 1/1 2/2 4/4 Note 2
itz
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 2/2 1/1 2/2 4/4 Note 2
Hit2
Xu Sitao ATEE 2/2 N/A N/A 4/4  Note 2
NEH NEH i
Note: Kzt -

1. Mr. Yang Lei, Raymond and Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard
have been appointed as non-executive directors on 26
November 2009.

2.  The independent non-executive Directors have not
attended these meetings, the purpose of which were
mainly to deal with implementation of executive policies
and administrative routine.

1. BEEERREELER-_ZTAF+—A=-+

NEEZTRIFATES -

2. REWIUFNTESUEBHELESH -

FHEBRERNTRRZETRABETR -
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

Company Secretary attend all regular Board meetings
and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and
keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests
for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such
directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung
acted as the Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted
as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance
with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the Company Secretary and the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
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The role of the Chief Executive Officer focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He/She is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for
the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board
committees are independent non-executive directors
and the list of the chairman and members of each
Board committee as at the date of this report is set
out below:

Audit Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)
Leung Wai Man, Roger
Xu Sitao

Nomination Committee
Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)
Tam Chun Fai

Li Wenjin
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Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Wenijin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors (including one independent
non-executive director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports
and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the qualified accountant or external
auditors before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external
auditors by reference to the work performed
by the external auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during EREEeNHE_EEAFt+_A=1—

the year ended 31 December 2009 to review the HIEFEERITMALE  SHEMBEEER
financial results and reports, financial reporting and Wy MBERENRTERR  ABEEEEIE
compliance procedures, internal control system and N R B E IR 2 B B AR e DA N B BE N IR A 8
risk management review and processes and the re- B o

appointment of the external auditors.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events W iE A 2 H A A R IR ,ai/ K 2 B
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the NEFEXNGEE 2 EHIE)
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee ELETERINELZBENERE - DF - FE
from the Board regarding the selection, appointment, SNERIFERMAESemE o
resignation or dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended RARRIBEZZEENF+_A=1T—HIEF
31 December 2009 has been reviewed by the Audit Bz FEBCRKABEZLTESERN -
Committee.

Nomination Committee REEZES

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee REZEBEe T ERERRENESTe o

include reviewing the structure, size and composition ®m REREK  HIEBEEESRELEE
of the Board, developing and formulating relevant BFEUAELSEEZIRETHIARNESSE
procedures for nomination and appointment of HER WA EBYIERTTEEZT 2B Y
directors, making recommendations to the Board e

on the appointment and succession planning of

directors, and assessment of the independence of

the independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process HLEECREMYIEEEMNE - FiE K
of selecting and recommending candidates for = ;pgﬁk BN AE oA D&
directorships by making reference to the balance of ;’%% ENHAM AR /£E%E 8l & 38
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éﬁf?l ﬁ?@ﬂﬂkﬁL(T?’jﬂq&@ﬁ IR FF
%

REERNFARIT - REF -

expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the requirements of the business of the
Group and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary. The nomination committee
held one meeting during the year.
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In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) and
87(2), Mr. Xu Wensheng and Mr. Li Wenjin, executive
directors of the Company, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and Mr.
Leung Wai Man, Roger, independent non-executive
director of the Company, shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
2010 annual general meeting. Mr. Yang Lei, Raymond
and Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, non executive
directors of the Company, shall retire and be eligible
for re-election at the 2010 annual general meeting
pursuant to the Company's bye-law 86(2).

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the
directors standing for re-election at the 2010 annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 25 March 2010
contains detailed information of the directors standing
for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations on and
approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determination of the annual remuneration packages of
the directors and the senior management and other
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related matters. The Human Resources Department
is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board of the Company about
these recommendations on remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages. The
remuneration committee held two meetings during
the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors
and the directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009.

The Company has also established written guidelines
with exact terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.
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The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 71 to 74.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the
Board has developed the Group’s systems of internal
control and risk assessment and management. The
Board has overall responsibility for reviewing and
maintaining an adequate and effective internal control
system to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Group. During the year, the
Board has conducted reviews of the internal control
system and considered the internal control system of
the Group has been implemented effectively.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors have rendered certain non-
audit services to the Company for the year ended
31 December 2009 amounted to approximately of
HK$200,000. The remuneration paid to the external
auditor of the Company in respect of audit services
for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
approximately of HK$2,600,000.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meetings are contained in the Company’s bye-laws.
Details of such rights and procedures to demand a
poll are included in all circulars to shareholders during
the year and the procedures for conducting a poll will
be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange on the business day following the
shareholders’ meeting.

Deviation from Code Provision E.1.2 (& reason):

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting.
The Chairman did not attend the annual general
meeting held on 18 May 2009, however, Mr. Li
Wenjin, as an executive director of the Company, took
the chair pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board recognises that the general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between
the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the
Board, or at his absence, an executive director of
the Company, as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board committee, will be available to
answer questions at future shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors.
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The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated
senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and
other information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2010
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The Directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group
during the year were sales of electronic payment
products and services ("EDC-POS Terminals"), sales
of electronic power meters and solutions, provision
of telecommunication solutions and operation value-
added services, provision of financial solutions,
services and related products and provision of
payment solutions and services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
by business and geographical segments is set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 75.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend (2008: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations is made by the
Group during the year (2008: HK$1,150,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share
capital and share options are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company had
reserves of HK$27,916,000 available for distribution
as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) (2008: HK$96,736,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$1,157,724,000 (2008:
HK$776,034,000) may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 180.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION BE - HENEOES

OF SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares RRBIAF AN BB EEMRGD - FA
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of ARRFEEAMEAFMERBERHER
its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the AR A

Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS =)
The Directors during the year and up to the date of FAREBEEARERRZIESR

this report were:

Executive Directors: HITES .
CHEUNG Yuk Fung EEIE
KUl Man Chun REER
XU Wensheng ™ &
LI Wenjin PXE
XU Chang Jun REE
Non-Executive Directors: FEHITES -
YANG Lei, Raymond 155
(appointed on 26 November 2009) (RZEBEENF+—AZ+HEZET)
CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard R Z
(appointed on 26 November 2009) (RZEBEENF+—A -+ BHEZET)
Independent non-executive Directors: BYKEHITES -
TAM Chun Fai B R
LEUNG Wai Man, Roger RER
XU Sitao FFRRE

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 87(1) RIEAR R A 2 AR 40RI5E87(1) &% 5£87(2)
and 87(2), one-third of the Directors of the Company & RRBI =0 —EFANARRFIRREF
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election RE LEwE SR A BEESIE -

at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Messrs. Xu Wensheng, Li Wenjin, Yang Lei, Raymond, RXAESE FXELLE BERLE - RIE
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard , Tam Chun Fai and Leung FE  BIREAERREREEGEMT
Wai Man, Roger will retire and, being eligible, will offer MKEETAERLMERERRREFKE
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual BEET -

general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
As at the date of this report, each of Mr. KUl Man
Chun, Mr. LI Wenjin, Mr. XU Wensheng and Mr.
XU Chang Jun has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of one year from 1
January 2004 and shall continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either the Company or the
Directors giving to the other not less than a notice
of three months. Save as disclosed herein, none of
the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contracts with the Company or any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 9 to 14.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the
Company

EERTHRARNEKRD - HEKRD
RESzEBERAXR

N_ZEENF+A=+—8" Ri%&ﬁ
BRBRHENA AR REBEEE (EXAE
NERE R ([#E 5 RBAEERA])) 2&Hm
BN RMESFFES - R ALRRFIRE
BHERPEGROIEISGFE 2 ELMkE
MGARRBI 2R RBWT -

|
gﬁiﬂw

i

fl

AT EREE0.0025B T2 EBR

Number of shares held

FrisiR 88

Personal Corporate
interest interest Total
Name of Director BEENA (PN 3 NEER wmey
Kui Man Chun REEH 25,200,000 617,083,636 642,283,636

(note (i) (A7)
Xu Wensheng 1w HE 4,566,000 - 4,566,000
Li Wenijin BNE 6,400,000 - 6,400,000
Xu Chang Jun ®REE 18,900,000 - 18,900,000
Xu Sitao FRE 700,000 - 700,000

Note: Brat -

()  These shares are held by Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun
Limited, a company which Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16%
interest, and Rich Global Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hi Sun Limited.

() ZERHBREEEFBEH Sun Limited CREH
5H599.16%Ezm 2 2 7)) &Hi Sun Limitedz &
EME A FIRIch Global Limited# A °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) The Company

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting,
retaining and motivating talented employees
in order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 29 November 2001 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
that date.

On 18 March 2004, 33,000,000 share options
were granted to certain directors and employees
at an exercise price of HK$0.374 per share (the
average closing price of the shares as quoted in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding 18 March
2004) with an expiry date of 17 March 2014.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share
options were granted to certain directors and
employees at an exercise price of HK$0.768 per
share (the average closing price of the shares as
quoted in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for
the five business days immediately preceding
26 September 2005) with an expiry date of 25
September 2015.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on
28 June 2006, each of the existing issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided
into four ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each (the
“Share Subdivision”), which was approved by
the shareholders of the Company and became
effective on 29 June 2006.

The share subdivision in the prior years has led
to an adjustment to the exercise prices of the
outstanding options and the number of shares
to be issued by the Company upon exercise of
the outstanding options. For share options with
exercise period from 18 March 2004 to 17 March
2014, the number of shares to be issued by the
Company upon full exercise of such outstanding
options immediately before the share subdivision
has been increased from 23,000,000 shares to
92,000,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935 per
share. For share options with exercise period from
26 September 2005 to 25 September 2015, the
number of shares to be issued by the Company
upon full exercise of such options immediately
before the share subdivision has been increased
from 33,300,000 shares to 133,200,000 shares
and the exercise price has been adjusted from
HK$0.768 to HK$0.192 per Share.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options
were granted to certain employees at an exercise
price of HK$2 per share (the average closing price
of the shares as quoted in the daily quotations
sheets issued by Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 2 January 2007) with an expiry date
of 1 January 2010.
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As at 31 December 2009, the particulars of the
options granted to each of the Directors and

RZZBZNF+A=+—R0 REZ
AEIRTEEFTRARRREE 2 BRE

employees of the Company under the Scheme BT
are as follows:
Movements in the Share Options: BIREZE) -
Number of
options
Exercise  Number of held at
price after options 31 December
share held at 2009
subdivision 1 January R-ZEZNE
(HK$) 2009 Granted  Exercised Lapsed +=A
ko afkc R-ZENF during during during =+-8
Name Date of grant 1B —R—Rfifs the year the year the year iz
#E R A S CEr) 2BREHE FRERE FRETR  FREAN  BREHA
Employees
&8
(Inaggregate) 2 January 2007
(#85) —TE+FE-f-RH* 2.00 41,458,000 - (41,457,000) - 1,000
41,458,000 - (41,457,000) - 1,000

* The exercisable period of the above share options is
from 2 January 2007 to 1 January 2010 (both dates
inclusive).

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
41,457,000 share options have been exercised
and the weighted average closing price
immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised was HK$3.62 per share.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to purchase or settle the option in cash. As at 31
December 2009, the Company had 1,000 share
options outstanding. On 1 January 2010, 1,000
share options have been lapsed and no share
option of the Company was outstanding at the
date of this report.

* EREREZ TR T -AREC
T—TF—F—HB (BIEEEMA) -

REEZZTTENF+_A=+—HIEHF
€ N 41,457,0001n 8 Ix 1 2 B 17 F -
R EARAETE A HR AT 2 MW (E
RERIE2EB T AEBEWELAR S ED
SEMNBEREZZEZRETEET R T
NFE+_A=+—H  KQAEHE1,00017
BEHRTE - R-_ZE—FF—F—8 -
1,00017 BERRBEE 3K - A ARE B H -
AN E) A R TTE 2 B AR o
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(b) Adoption of Employee Incentive Plan

of a subsidiary

As disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 8 April 2009. PAX Technology Limited
(“PAX”) adopted an employee incentive plan
(“PAX Employee Incentive Plan”) for the issuance
of no more than 2,187,500 PAX ordinary shares
(subject to the terms of the Employee Incentive
Plan and the relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules) under the Employee Incentive
Plan on 30 March 2009.

The Employee Incentive Plan is designed to
provide the directors, employees, advisors
and consultants of the PAX Group with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
PAX Group, which will encourage the grantees
of such options to work towards enhancing the
value of the PAX Group and benefit the PAX
Group as a whole.

The Scheme became effective on 27 April 2009
and unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain valid and effective for the period of
10 years from that date.

Up to date of the report, no share option was
granted under the PAX Employee Incentive
Plan.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2009, the Company had been notified of
the following substantial shareholders’ interests and
short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital. These interests are in addition
to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors
and chief executive.

FTERRRROKEBERSG 2Ex®
158729}

BARBIRIE R 5 S ERPIE3361FFE
ZEBERREBTMABR  R-_FTTENAFT
“A=t—HB ARAREHE NI ETEMRR
BAARRBDEITRAS%I A 2 s &M
KR - RSB TER EXARERMEIE
S RITHRER 2 B

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name of Shareholder ordinary shares of shareholding**
IREREHE EEREE REZBNE DL
Rich Global Limited (“RGL”)*** 617,083,636(L)" 23.08%
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”)*** 617,083,636(L)" 23.08%

(Note 1)

(B15t1)
Kui Man Chun (Note 1) 642,283,636(L)" 24.02%
REF (Wa1)
Ever Union Capital Limited ( “Ever Union™) 200,000,000(L)* 7.48%
Che Fung (Note 2) 200,000,000(L)* 7.48%
B (Kit2)
Notes: Biat -

1 HSL is interested in the Company share capital by virtue
of its 100% shareholding in RGL, and these shares are
held by Kui Man Chun through HSL, a company which Mr.
Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16% interest.

2 Che Fung is interested in the Company's share capital by
virtue of its 100% shareholding in Ever Union.

* The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.
**  The percentage is calculated based on the total issued
number of shares of the Company as at 31 December
2009.
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Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin are Directors of
RGL and Mr. Kui Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu
Wensheng are Directors of HSL which were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transaction which constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction not exempted under Rule 14A.31 or Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules are disclosed below. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of such transactions.

(a) Disposal of shares of PAX Technology
Limited
As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company of 10 April 2008 and the circular of
the Company of 8 April 2009, PAX Technology
Limited (“PAX”) (an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with
the Company, Dream River Limited (the
“Purchaser”) and Hi Sun Technology Holding
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (the “Transferor”), pursuant to
which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to purchase the 8,750,000 PAX ordinary shares
(the “Sale Shares”) held by the Transferor,
and the Transferor has conditionally agreed
to sell the Sale Shares to the Purchaser at
the consideration of US$20 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$155.4 million) (the
“Disposal”’) on 30 March 2009. Immediately
upon registration of the Sale Shares in the
name of the Purchaser, the Sale Shares shall be
re-designated as the PAX Series B preference
shares on a one-to-one basis and those PAX
Series B preference shares shall represent 20%
of the total issued share capital of PAX.
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The Purchaser is wholly-owned by Hao Capital
Fund Il L.P. ("Hao Capital”). Digital Investment
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of
PAX, is a subsidiary of Hao Capital China Fund
L.P.. As the general partners and management
companies of Hao Capital and Hao Capital
China Fund L.P. are under common control,
the Disposal and the transactions contemplated
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
(including the execution of the Shareholders’
Agreement at Completion) also constitutes a
connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Disposal
was completed on 29 April 2009.

PAX also adopted a PAX Share Option Scheme
for the issuance of such number of PAX ordinary
shares representing no more than 5% of the
total number of PAX shares in issue immediately
after the completion of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

Total consideration received (net of expenses
directly attributable to the Disposal) in cash was
HK$153.74 million. The difference of HK$87.58
million between the net proceeds from the
Disposal and the amount transferred to non-
controlling interests of HK$66.16 million has
been recognised directly in equity.
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(b) Disposal and Issue of Convertible

Preference Shares of Success Bridge
Limited

As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company of 30 December 2009 and the circular
of 8 January 2010, the Company and Wise
World Group Limited (the “Subscriber”) entered

into a conditional subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) on 24 December
2009, pursuant to which the Company shall
procure the issue and allotment by Success
Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”) (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) of, and the
Subscriber shall subscribe for 600 preference
shares of US$0.001 each in the share capital
of Success Bridge (“SBL Preference Shares”)
at a total consideration of US$60 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$465 million)
(the “Subscription”). The 600 SBL Preference
Shares represent 6.0% of the issued share
capital of Success Bridge as enlarged by the
Subscription. The 600 SBL Preference Shares
have been issued on 29 January 2010.

On completion of the Subscription Agreement
(“Completion”), the Company, the Subscriber and
Success Bridge would enter into a shareholders’
agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to grant the rights to shareholders
of SBL Preference Shares (other than the
Company) (“SBL Preference Shareholders”) to,
within a prescribed time frame, transfer to the
Company all SBL Preference Shares together
with all ordinary shares of Success Bridge
(“SBL Ordinary Shares”) (that have arisen from
the conversion of the SBL Preference Shares)
then in issue and held by such SBL Preference
Shareholders in consideration of the issue of
new ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)
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at the initial exchange price of HK$4.5 per
Share (subject to adjustments). The Company
will also agree, (i) if the audited consolidated net
profit after taxation of the Success Bridge and
its subsidiaries for the financial year ending 31
December 2010 (the “2010 SBL Net Profit”) is
less than RMB450,000,000, the Company shall
transfer to the SBL Preference Shareholders
such aggregate number of additional SBL
Ordinary Shares equal to up to 3% of the
aggregate number of ordinary and preference
shares of Success Bridge (“SBL Shares”) in
issue as at Completion at a consideration of
HK$1.00 (the “Ratchet Disposal”); and (i) if
the 2010 SBL Net Profit is RMB500,000,000
or more, the SBL Preference Shareholders
shall transfer to the Company such aggregate
number of SBL Preference Shares and/or SBL
Ordinary Shares equal to up to 2% of the
aggregate number of SBL Shares in issue as at
Completion at a consideration of HK$1.00 (the
“Ratchet Acquisition”).

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement, at
any time during a period from (and including)
the day falling nine months after the date of
the first issue of the SBL Preference Shares
to (and excluding) the date falling on the third
anniversary thereof and subject to the number
of SBL Preference Shares then outstanding
exceeding 50% in number of the aggregate
number of such SBL Preference Shares and
SBL Ordinary Shares (that have arisen on the
conversion of the SBL Preference Shares), the
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majority SBL Preference Shareholders may, at
their sole option, require the Company to acquire
all SBL Preference Shares then in issue and
SBL Ordinary Shares (that have arisen from the
conversion of the SBL Preference Shares) and
held by the SBL Preference Shareholders (other
than the Company) in consideration of the issue
to the relevant SBL Preference Shareholder or
the person (not being a connected person of
the Company) designated by it of such number
of new Shares to be calculated by US$60
million (or its HK$ equivalent calculated at the
exchange rate of US$1: HK$7.7553) divided by
the initial exchange price of HK$4.5 per Share
(subject to adjustments) (“Exchange Rights”).
There will be no Ratchet Disposal or Ratchet
Acquisition if the Exchange Rights are exercised
in full.

The Subscriber is wholly-owned by Hao Capital
Fund II L.P.. Hao Capital Fund Il L.P. and
Hao Capital China Fund L.P. (being funds
under common control) through their wholly
owned subsidiaries are currently substantial
shareholders of the Company’s non-wholly
owned subsidiary, PAX. Accordingly, each of the
Subscription, the Ratchet Disposal, the Ratchet
Acquisition, the purchase of SBL Shares on
exercise of the Exchange Rights, constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company,
subject to reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Completion took place on 29 January 2010.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 14%
— five largest suppliers combined 41%
Sales

— the largest customer 27%
— five largest customers combined 54%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) Disposal and Issue of Convertible

preference shares of Success Bridge
Limited

On 24 December 2009, the Company and Wise
World Group Limited, an independent party
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a conditional
subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall
issue and the Subscriber shall subscribe for 600
convertible preference shares of US$0.001 each
in the share capital of Success Bridge (the "SBL
Preference Shares") at a total consideration
of US$60 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$465 million) (the “Subscription”). The SBL
Preference Shares represent 6.0% of the issued
share capital of Success Bridge as enlarged
by the Subscription. Detailed terms of the
Subscription are set out in the Company’s
circular to the shareholders dated 8 January
2010.

The Subscription was completed on 29 January
2010.
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(b) Acquisition of Mega Hunt Investments

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Limited

On 26 January 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, New Concept Services Limited
(“New Concept”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Rich Giant Investments
Limited (“Rich Giant”) and Ms. Wang Lina,
independent third parties, pursuant to which
Rich Giant agreed to sell and New Concept
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Mega Hunt Investments
Limited (“Mega Hunt”) for the consideration of
25 new shares of US$1 each of New Concept
to be allotted and issued to Rich Giant. The
new shares represent 20% of the issued share
capital of New Concept as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of shares. The acquisition
was completed on 5 March 2010.

Proposed spin-off and separate
listing of the transaction data capture
terminals and solutions businesses
On15 March 2010, the Company announced its
intention to spin-off the transaction data capture
terminals and solutions businesses, including
EDC-POS terminal business and electronic
meter business (the “Transaction Data Capture
Terminals and Solutions Businesses”) on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (the “Proposed
Spin-off”). The Proposed Spin-off is subject to
the approval of the Company's shareholders
and the Stock Exchange.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement
scheme or the Group or Company set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 and they can choose
to make additional contributions. The employer’s
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at the
age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the wages for the year of those
workers in the PRC. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of its
directors, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained during the year the amount of public float
as required under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 March 2010
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBERE

2009 2008 Change
—BBRE —TT\H 29
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)
RESULTS E S5 THET TAET
Turnover X 1,278,518 1,213,468 +5%
Gross profit FEH 518,739 553,780 -6%
Other income H AU A 35,194 29,454 +19%
Other gains/(losses), net B e,/ (E5H8) F5 992 (6,432) N/ATEF
Segmental EBITDA 3 $8EBITDA 192,768 226,137 -15%
Profit before income tax & BT 15 A5 Al s ) 143,766 176,553 -19%
Profit for the year F s 114,923 135,678 -15%
Profit attributable to: FEIE R A -
— Equity holders of the — RRAREREFEA
Company 85,845 114,350
— Non-controlling interests — AR R 29,078 21,328

114,923 135,678

Earnings per share for profit  ANATHEZREH AEL

attributable to the equity w2 IR AT

holders of the Company:

~ Basic (HK$) — BER (BT) 0.035 0.051 -31%
— Diluted (HK$) —#55 (B71) 0.035 0.051 -31%
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2009 2008 Change
—BENFE —TTNF HE)
HK$°000 HK$’000 +/(-)
KEY BALANCE

SHEET ITEMS FEEESERER FET FET
Total equity e 1B 1,915,776 1,264,669 +51%
Net current assets mMBNE EFAE 1,609,370 954,785 +69%
Total assets BERBRE 2,318,330 1,668,616 +39%
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFE (BiT) 0.717 0.567 +26%

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Hi Sun
Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) hereby
announces the audited consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2009 together with
the comparative figures for year 2008. The annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s Audit
Committee.
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Turnover* EBITDA
ExE EBITDA
2009 2008 Chapge 2009 2008 Chapge
“EERE ZTTN\F 28 —EENE _TTN\F .
HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-)  HK$000 HK$'000 +(-)
FAT T THET TET
PAX transaction data capture BERZEEKE
terminals and solutions RIEHRBARR
Electronic payment products B NEMRRE
and services (‘EDC-POS ([EFiREmk])
Terminals”) 492,942 493,589 -0% 102,435 119,336 -14%
Electronic power meters and SHTEEMN
solutions BAAR 253,686 350,167 -28% 25,033 62,033 -60%
HI SUN value-added BREERATRR
solutions and services R
Telecommunication solutions SABRATRR
and operation value-added BELERS
services 359,046 248,105 +45% 148,271 136,234 +9%
Financial solutions, services R 148,968 120,608 +24% 23,205 (29,746) N/A
and related products R RABER @R
Payment solutions and services Xt R 5 % I BRi% 22,452 - N/A  (45,970) - N/A
@R NER
Others it 924 999 8%  (60206) (61,720)  +2%
Segmental results PEXE 1,278,518 1,213,468 +5% 192,768 226,137 -15%
Depreciation e (40,673)  (39,268) -4%
Amortisation g (7.865) (8,772 +10%
Operating profit LERA 144230 178,097 -19%
Finance cost MERMAK (464) (1,544) +70%
Profit before income tax BRFT S B ADRR 143,766 176,553 -19%
Income tax expense FERREX (28,843)  (40,875) +29%
Profit for the year FriEAl 114,923 135,678 -15%

* Turnover from external customers

Y RANNIRFZERE
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During year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s
turnover amounted to HK$1,278.52 million,
representing an increase of 5% compared to 2008.
Segmental EBITDA amounted to HK$192.77 million,
representing a decrease of 15% compared to 2008.
Profit before income tax dropped by HK$32.79 million
as compared to 2008.

With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets
as at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$2,318.33
million, compared with HK$1,668.62 million as at 31
December 2008. As at 31 December 2009, net current
assets amounted HK$1,609.37 million, compared
with HK$954.79 million as at 31 December 2008.

Investing and Financing activities

In April 2009, the Group disposed of 8,750,000
ordinary shares of Pax Technology Limited (the
“Sale Shares”) at the consideration of US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$155.4 million).
Immediately upon registration of the Sale Shares in
the name of the purchaser, the Sale Shares were re-
designated as the PAX Series B preference shares
on a one-to-one basis and those PAX Series B
preference shares shall represent 20% of the total
issued share capital of PAX. The proceeds from the
disposal will be used for the Group’s general working
capital. Besides, PAX also adopted a PAX Share
Option Scheme for the issuance of such number of
PAX ordinary shares representing no more than 5%
of the total number of PAX shares in issue. Up to the
date of this report, no option was granted under the
PAX Share Option Scheme.
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In May 2009, an aggregate of 400,000,000 new
shares were issued and allotted by the Company at
HK$0.75 per share. Proceeds from the subscription
would be utilized as to approximately HK$60 million for
the development of 3G mobile value-added solutions
and services in the PRC; approximately HK$60 million
for the development of payment operation services in
the electronic payment market in the United States
of America; approximately HK$30 million for the
development of financial solutions and electronic
power meters and solutions outsourcing services;
and the remaining balance as general working capital
of the Group.

In January 2010, Success Bridge Limited (“SBL”)
allotted 600 SBL preference shares at a total
subscription price of US$60 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$465 million) to a subscriber. SBL
preference shareholders will at any time from the
date of issuance until a qualified IPO becoming
unconditional, be entitled to convert all or part of the
SBL preference shares into the SBL ordinary shares
on the basis of one SBL preference share into one
SBL ordinary share (subject to adjustments) and
those SBL preference shares shall represent 6% of
the total issued share capital of SBL as enlarged by
the subscription. Net proceeds from the subscription
of approximately HK$463 million will be utilized as to
approximately HK$200 million for the development of
3G mobile value-added solutions and services; and
approximately HK$200 million for the development of
wireless payment operation services in the PRC; and
the remaining balance as general working capital of
SBL and its subsidiaries.
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In March 2010, New Concept Services Limited
(“New Concept”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company purchased the entire issued share capital
of Mega Hunt Investments Limited from Rich Giant
Investments Limited (“Rich Giant”). The consideration
was satisfied by the allotment and issue of the NC
consideration shares, representing 20% of the issued
share capital of New Concept as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of such NC consideration shares.
Rich Giant will procure that New Concept can secure
the employment of the technical experts for the
research and development of low voltage power line
carrier wave communication technology (“PLC”) and
will also procure certain intellectual property rights
in respect of PLC to be transferred to New Concept
at nil consideration. PLC is a kind of communication
system specifically designed for electricity system,
whereby analog and digital data are transmitted by
carrier wave through the power lines in the existing
electricity system. It has the advantage of wide
coverage of communication by utilizing the power
lines in the existing electricity system. With the
acquisition, New Concept is able to leverage on the
technology developed by the technical experts and
have synergy effects with the electronic power meters
and solutions business.
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PAX TRANSACTION DATA CAPTURE
TERMINALS AND SOLUTIONS

Electronic payment products and services
(“EDC-POS terminals”)

EXZBBUERIRERERT

EFXNERRESE (EFTRRIR
# 1)

2009 2008 Change
—EEhE ZZTITNF g2
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FHET FET
Turnover = 492,942 493,589 -0%
EBITDA EBITDA 102,435 119,336 -14%
Operating profit 48 4% 5 100,512 117,601 15%
Research and development 7% & FEE B AR 24,149 13,194 +83%

costs

The turnover of EDC-POS terminals maintained at
similar level as compared with last year, with new
sales record of total shipment over 300,000 units
in 2009. While the financial tsunami in late 2008 led
to the holding back of certain sales orders by the
financial institutions during the first half year in 2009,
turnover experienced an increase in the second half
year along with the economic recovery.
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By the end of 2009, the total number of EDC-
POS terminals in Mainland China amounted to
approximately 2.4 million, reflecting a relatively low
penetration rate as compared to most developed
countries. It provides ample room for the expansion
of EDC-POS terminals business. On the other hand,
bank payment cards issuance in Mainland China
continued to surge with a total number exceeding
2.0 billion by the end of 2009. During 2009, card
payment transaction volume amounted to over 2.9
billion transactions, totalling over RMBG6.0 trillion. In
2010, PAX Technology’s EDC-POS terminals sales in
Mainland China are expected to keep its momentum,
as fueled by the rising acceptance of card payments
from the incessant improvement of the payment
transactions and processing infrastructure.

In addition, PAX Technology further strengthened its
foothold in the international market where turnover
increased by 25% as compared to last year,
representing 18% of total sales of this segment.
Currently, our products are sold to Vietnam, Singapore
and Japan. We are also selling to certain European
countries, such as Austria, Denmark, France. Markets
in the Middle East included Saudi Arabia while in
Africa, our market covered South Africa and Ghana.
Looking ahead, we will look for new opportunities
and delve into the Asia and American markets as
well as the Oceania countries. With the first class
products and services, we endeavor to make PAX
Technology an international brand symbolizing top
quality electronic payment products and solutions.

R&D costs rose by 83% compared to 2008 with more
exertion placed in development of new products such
as our latest multi-lane terminals and contactless
devices.
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Electronic power meters and solutions

EREEMRBRAR

2009 2008 Change
“EBEERE —ZTTNF p=if 7]
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET TAT
Turnover S 253,586 350,167 -28%
EBITDA EBITDA 25,033 62,033 -60%
Operating profit ks K| 6,677 42,878 -84%
Research and development 95 2 B B kAN 24,505 9,309 +163%

costs

During the current year, there was a decline in
segmental turnover as a result of the holding up
of various procurement plans by the electricity
companies, awaiting for more details regarding
the national electricity network development and
reformation plan.

In Year 2009, State Grid planed to invest nearly
RMBB8O0 billion on construction of power consumption
information collection system in 298 cities in 27
provinces over the next two years. RMB15 billion
and RMB46 billion will be invested in power related
information collection system and purchase of the
three-phase and single-phase electronic power meters
respectively. Currently, the State Grid has proposed to
construct a smart grid by Year 2020. China Southern
Power Grid in the working conference in 2010 put
forward that investment in fixed asset is expected
to reach RMB104.2 billion, including RMB88 billion
invested in grid construction. Accordingly, the China
Southern Power Grid’s investment in the electronic
power meters would also substantially increase.

Increased R&D expenses were due to more exertion
placed to improve the quality of existing products and
development of new series so as to be in line with the
needs of the development of power grids.
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HI SUN VALUE-ADDED SOLUTION
AND SERVICES

Telecommunications solutions and
operation value-added services

S E B EBRT RE K%

EMBERTREREELHERS

2009 2008 Change
—BBAE —TT)\F 29
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET T

Turnover =
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit R A

Research and development Bt 75 K2 e B A AR
costs

359,646 248,105 +45%
148,271 136,234 +9%
137,408 125,067 +10%
26,173 - N/A
A iE B

During the year, we continued to be the sole provider
of the nation-wide interactive voice response (“IVR”)
and interactive video and voice response (“IVVR?)
platform for China Mobile. Our service of MDO platform
started to generate income in the 2H2009, bringing
us additional turnover of over HK$50 million. With the
benefit from market growth, turnover grew by 45% to
HK$359.65 million while operating profit increased by
10%, given the operating costs in commencement of
the new MDO platform and additional R&D expenses
incurred in the current year.
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We anticipate more modest growth in the traditional
IVR business after years of significant increase in the
traffic volume since 2005. We expect new revenue
growth from IVVR and MDO business starting from
2010. We manage to have a steady growth in the
operating profit through a combination of operation
efficiencies and effective cost management. Looking
ahead, we will continue to develop other innovative
wireless value-added solutions and services in the
PRC.

R&D expenses were placed to improve the quality of
existing products and development of new products.
Likewise, we consistently launch new and innovative
products to meet the ever-changing technology and
market demand.

Financial solutions, services and related
products

REEREG  EHRIVREBELEE _TT
TFEZFHEBENRERRR - HBAR
FRZER - HMEFIVVREMDOE & W
AEZZF-—ZFRBTRAIER - BULF
R AEERBNEBEESHER BB LZK
AEBFERLKEaNESRERR - REX
K RNEE ST BB RE M AR E
ARIBERRR Ty R N iRT%

AEENMERTTEZRNEZ BRERTT
BEERNEENNRIERNFSE - Bt
IR - NS AN L AT Em DS T2
BIEOBREHSEK

ERBART R RERMEEAER

2009 2008 Change
—EBEZAFE —TT)N\F gk )
HK$000  HK$'000 /()

FET FATT
Turnover* o 148,968 120,608 +24%
EBITDA EBITDA 23,205 (29,746) N/A
i A
Operating profit/(loss) rERm (E8) 7,253 (44,533) N/A
ANiE A

* Turnover from external customers

* RBIMNBEFZEXER
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In 2009, the segmental turnover rose by 24% to
HK$148.97 million. Our financial solutions segment
recorded an operating profit of HK$7.25 million as
compared to operating loss of HK$44.53 million in
2008. New source of income was generated with
the development of our business into new banking-
related industries. With the aim to create a more
stable, sustainable and recurring income streams,
we have developed the foundation for profitability
in 2010 by focusing certain measures to extend

RZZEZTNF - HEE FEFEIE IN24%E
148,970,000/ 7T © i1 & B AR R T RE TS 8%
B8 & m 77,250,000 7L * M—ZTE)N\F
B $X 1S 45 & E51844,530,00078 7T - NEBE K
XBMEDMHRITAEBONITE BB TH
HUARIR - BT HEFEIEE - AJFERK
BHEZWAKIR  ARERERE THEE
AIRAAREEERHEBITEABERRFR
FHZEABRERER BT —ZFAF
TTER - AEBZIRERASTEREBIE

our underlying strength and expertise in providing TEWBH EBBATR  ZHERAERER
cross-industry value-added solutions. Our value- AR 7% K B A AN AR TS o
added solutions services include industrial advisory,
business operation solutions, system development
and operation services, and other outsourcing
services.
Payment solutions and services XHRRFRZR R
2009
—EEBAF
HK$’000
THET
Turnover LHERR 22,452
EBITDA EBITDA (45,970)
Operating loss 1R B e (46,211)
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During the current year, we have extended our
business into another innovative area — payment
solutions. With the unique position of Hi Sun and the
remarkable synergy among our telecommunication
and financial solutions segments, we have established
a new subsidiary, Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Ltd.
(“Mobile Pay”) in March 2009, providing payment
solutions and value-added services. Currently, Mobile
Pay is principally engaged in the operation and
development of the first nation-wide mobile payment
platform and solutions with China Mobile, promoting
mobile payment to be the most common means of
payment. Personal financial information services of
mobile e-commerce payments can be achieved by
buying goods, checking account information using
their cell phones as a payment device.

Payment solutions is expected to bring additional
growth impetus to the Group. Operating loss of
HK$46.21 million during the year was mainly due to
start up costs and pre-operating expenses. While our
mobile payment solution only became operational in
March 2009, the commercial trial has commenced in
Q3 2009 and it was successfully launched in 2010 in
all 33 provinces in the PRC.

OUTLOOK

It is anticipated that the business environment in
Year 2010 will continue to be challenging. However,
we believe that given the steady cash brought by the
EDC-POS terminal business and telecommunication
solutions, together with the enormous room for
growth in various businesses and our strong financial
position, the Group is going to regain its momentum
with existing business opportunities ahead.
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Electronic payment products and services
(“EDC-POS Terminals”)

Looking forward, electronic payment products and
services are expected to remain one of the major
income streams for the Group. Currently, Hi Sun is one
of the dominant market leaders in China. Persistent
force from the Chinese government to modernize
the country’s payment infrastructure and to improve
the acceptance of card payments, are expected to
drive the demand of our products. The stable cash
inflow generated from this business segment provides
working capital for the development of emerging
market and continuous research and development of
innovative and high quality products.

Electronic power meters and solutions

Market outlook remains strong with current industry
trends supporting an increase in demand for advanced
power meter solutions. In view of the escalating
awareness on energy-saving solutions, the State
Grid and the China Southern Power Grid are looking
out for environmental-friendly, effective and efficient
electricity network and energy system. Currently,
the State Grid has proposed to construct a smart
grid by Year 2020. All these factors are expected to
contribute to the market demand for electronic power
meters.
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Telecommunication solutions and
operation value-added services

Hi Sun continues to benefit from its agreement with
China Mobile to provide nation-wide IVR and IVVR
platforms as well as the new MDO platform which bring
to the Group a perpetual revenue stream. Subsequent
to the restructuring of the telecommunication industry
in the PRC, it is anticipated that telecommunication
operators in China will further expand their operation
and increase investment in the sector. Hi Sun believes
that the competition and government investment will
create greater industry diversity, bringing opportunities
for new products and high value-added services
and solutions over the long run. Apart from the
existing businesses, we will continue to develop other
inventive wireless value-added solutions and services
in the PRC.

Financial solutions, services and related
products

The global financial turmoail in late 2008 has adversely
impacted the economic conditions, especially
financial institutions and their related businesses.
With the aim to create a more stable, sustainable and
recurring income streams, we have refocused certain
measures to extend our underlying strength and
expertise in providing value-added solutions for multi-
industries. Currently, our mission is to enhance our
position and become a significant service provider to
financial institutions in Mainland China. Our relatively
significant experience in deploying financial solutions
provides us with future revenue opportunities as
banks and other financial institutions throughout the
world are increasingly outsourcing certain non-core
management functions to simplify operations and
lower costs. Financial solutions will remain our core
competencies and continue to create values and
synergy to our Group.
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Payment solutions and services

In the application of the emerging mobile e-commerce,
mobile payment has always been considered by the
industry as an important aspect of future development.
Boasting the largest mobile phone market in the
world, China has more than 600 million mobile phone
users, with mobile phones reaching all spheres of
people’s social life. Looking to examples abroad,
the development of the mobile payment business in
Japan and South Korea has developed rapidly. The
mobile payment business will grow into another brand
new e-commerce platform, following the example of
personal computer.

According to relevant survey reports, the size of
the third-party e-payment market transactions in
China sustained rapid growth. Volume of transaction
reached RMB580.8 billion in 2009, with quarterly
growth rate maintained at 19% or above. Currently,
the PRC government is proceeding with a number
of projects to increase usage in this regard, such
as mobile mass traffic, mobile tickets and shopping,
etc. The aim is to promote the application of all
types of products to make the people’s livelihood
better, thus laying a solid foundation for the smooth
implementation of mobile payment.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group reported total
assets of HK$2,318.33 million (2008: HK$1,668.62
million), which were financed by total liabilities of
HK$402.55 million (2008: HK$403.95 million) and
equity of HK$1,915.78 million (2008: HK$1,264.67
million). The net asset value was HK$1,915.78 million
(2008: HK$1,264.67 million). It amounted to HK$0.72
per share as compared to HK$0.57 per share as at
31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had cash and
short-term bank deposit of HK$1,401.72 million (2008:
HK$641.56 million) and no short term borrowings
(2008: HK$15.21 million). The net cash position as
at 31 December 2009 was HK$1,401.72 million as
compared to HK$626.35 million as at 31 December
2008.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS
OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any
short term borrowings.

Approximately HK$421.32 million, HK$427.44 million,
HK$289.96 million and HK$1.25 million of the Group’s
cash balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollar, US dollar and Euro respectively as at 31
December 2009.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group
has no significant investment held as at 31 December
2009.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group
does not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associates during the year ended 31
December 2009.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no
specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2009.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and
incurs expenses denominated mainly in US dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Currently, the
Group has not entered into agreements or purchased
instruments to hedge the Group’s exchange rate
risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact
on the operating results of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liability as at
31 December 2009.
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EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at
31 December 2009 was 1,988. The breakdown of
employees by division is as follows:

PAX transaction data capture terminals
and solutions

Electronic payment products and services
(“EDC-POS Terminals”)

Electronic power meters and solutions

Hi Sun Value-added Solutions and Services

Telecommunication solutions

Financial solutions

Payment solutions

Corporate office

==

AEBR_ZTENF+-_A=1t—HZEE
BES1,988A © REZHFIAD T ¢

HEXZBBWELRBR 1,026
TS
BT Em SR 313
([BF KRR ])
BRI EEMRBIRAR 713
=B ERRSRR RS 925
BAEORT R 330
TRAR T 420
SRR T 2 175
BB 37

1,988

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages
are comprehensive and competitive. Employees
are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus
annual performance related bonuses. The Group
also sponsors selected employees to attend external
training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s
businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE 2 wmET

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered
as an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the
operating performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash
flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The
use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the
overall understanding of the Group current financial performance.
Additionally because the Group has historically reported certain
non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers the inclusion
of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial
reporting.
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

EORKESTEHM

To the shareholders of Hi Sun Technology
(China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 75 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the
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auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 12 March 2010

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009



PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERKES SR AT

FEENE (FE) ARAFKRRK
(MEREEMRIZONERAR)

iz (AT [24F1)) EEZIIENET5E179E S
BRE (hE) ARAR ([EAF]) REMBAR AT
EHWITEEE]) NEaMBEHRE  WEEMBERREER
“EENFT A=t HNRARAREEARKRER
EZHLEFENGANER FazERaER  REERE
BHPRNGEARERER  URTFEZSTBREEREM
B LR RE o

EERMBRRARKENEL

RAREFALRRBEBRHDARRGOEBUHR
SRR RIRRES (A TED) ORBEREREREEHA
FislBRSHANBRE - ERTRERG - TERIE
EEURR R AT AT R T RFAEM M0 A BB -

BORKEGTMERH
i R
KFRE =+

BB 95 5% T 7 MR SR BB AT S B B
KRB ¢ R BRIE AR R ¢ RE
R TR A B kE -

BBERY B
BZHNEERBREBERMANEREZFEREMB
BRFLER  XRBARE-NN—FL(27
B BOOREMERBBRME - Rt ZINARE
PIEEA B R - RATSARE AR A
Hi A+ 8 FEEEREE -

HPEREETESAMASHEMNE LR £
ETEZ o BUERRBRLMETERREL - X
MEINITES U EBTUHTVBERRES
NEEEAERERRAL -

BERSERTRFAEREEY HHRRMEELE
RFEBEEAHNBRESE - FIEEHNRFIVANZ
BUEDE) HI BT - BIERT A BN IRFE SRR T B B

BN (FE) ARAT —SEAEER 73



Independent Auditor’s Report

R R G

BHREAFAERERRANEAR - EFHEZERRE - % =R

%&Eﬁ%)}?éﬁi%ﬁﬁE%E%%&EE‘W’A%MIJ%&EM%%&%*HE@ BRA  ZEEAMBREDIRIES S %S
MR URFHEENEZET  BAXIFREAF LRBEEMATHRMSEATILSEER -
ERIE IR R BE B AR ER - %?ﬁ@?ﬁ#ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ = qu ENE+ A=t ANEEYIREEEHE
BERAEGEEMAELN S ATHARENE - URFFER ZALFEEMNFERES TS YO IRBES

B EBRINH N - (RBEEDD) WIBEREL RRE -

HFIHEGE - BRPIMESNEZRIEEXRMEE i ST

MEZ BRI HER -
BERKESTRSEER
SV E -]

&b —2-BF=A+-H

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

R el e e N



For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
Notes HK$°’000 HK$’ 000
hEzg FET AT
Turnover S 5,6 1,278,518 1,213,468
Cost of sales SHE B 7 (759,779) (659,688)
Gross profit EF 518,739 553,780
Other income Habg A 5 35,194 29,454
Other gains/(losses), net Hiblikzs (E18) F%E 5 992 (6,432)
Selling expenses HERY 7 (126,023) (119,841)
Administrative expenses T EH 7 (284,672) (278,864)
Operating profit =Nyl 144,230 178,097
Finance costs A& B 10 (464) (1,544)
Profit before income tax & BT18 55 B i A 143,766 176,553
Income tax expense BIESE b 11 (28,843) (40,875)
Profit for the year F N K 114,923 135,678
Profit Attributable to: FEAL -
- Equity holders of the Company — RABIERTFTAA 85,845 114,350
— Non-controlling interests — R A 29,078 21,328
114,923 135,678
Earnings per share for profit ARrlERFEA
attributable to the equity holders FE(R &R 2
of the Company: HH &
- Basic (HK$) — 2K (BT) 14 0.035 0.051
~ Diluted (HK$) — 8% (Br) 14 0.035 0.051
The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of these FEESE1T9E v M iR & M sk 2 H A &
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Inco

SE 2 HEHRKRFER | L

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008

—EENFE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit for the year F (A4 F) 114,923 135,678

Other comprehensive income HEm2mElas

Exchange differences arising on translation BMEGINHTE N A
of the financial statements of foreign M RRELZ

subsidiaries MEHZERE (348) 43,665

Total comprehensive income for the year FAEE W Z BT 114,575 179,343
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  E{E 2 HE U= 4EEE ¢

— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEEA 85,498 155,412

— Non-controlling interests — FETERRE 29,077 23,931

114,575 179,343

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of these FOEE1TIOBE c T e MBIk 2 HP

AN

o

consolidated financial statements.

N

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

—Jl‘i



As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2009 2008
—EENEF —ZTT)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
hg=d FET FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties WEYE 15 1,827 1,969
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MG 16 125,734 147,541
Leasehold land HELH 17 42,007 44,180
Intangible assets mILEE 18 116,064 122,835
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHEE 19 23,400 -
Total non-current assets FREBEELTE 309,032 316,525
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 167,558 170,063
Trade and other receivables, JFE UK BR R e oAt
prepayments FEWFRIR - TR
and deposits FIERE S 22 437,805 530,160
Due from a related JE I — S &
company NGIE/ S| 30, 37(b) - 1,176
Financial assets at BRFERA
fair value through wAEE
profit or loss TRUEE 23 480 519
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 24 1,740 8,612
Short-term bank deposits RERIRIT R 25 261,741 124,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReENEESEED 26 1,139,974 517,261
Total current assets REEELRE 2,009,298 1,352,091
Total assets EEHARE 2,318,330 1,668,616
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to ZAQFEFFEA
the Company’s equity holders BiERAK #E
Share capital A% A 27 6,684 5,580
Reserves f#f 28 1,746,156 1,191,387
1,752,840 1,196,967
Non-controlling interests JEERER 162,936 67,702
Total equity B 1,915,776 1,264,669

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHBT FAETT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 32 2,626 6,641
Total non-current liabilites  Fnmafes 2626 6,641
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables T ER A R E A
FET IR 29 363,402 340,222
Taxation payable FET I8 36,526 41,875
Borrowings RN 31 - 15,209
Total current liabilites =~~~ w"®&f@E#®&E 00000000 399,928 397,306
Total liabilites ~~~~~~~~~~~~ &f®® 402554 @ 403,947
Total equity and liabilities EEREEREE 2,318,330 1,668,616
Net current assets REEERE 1,609,370 954,785
Total assets less current liabilities ZBELZLEBERGRBAES 1,918,402 1,271,310
On behalf of the Board
REREEZ
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
B E FNE
Director Director
o EZE
The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of these E8EEI1TIR WM ThiR & M Bk 2 H A &
consolidated financial statements. 5o
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As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2009 2008
—EENE —ZEE)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
bg=d FER FHET
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 15 4,373 4,631
Leasehold land MHE LT 17 28,068 28,827
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHERE 19 23,400 -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZZE 20 606,120 687,609
Total non-currentassets ¥ *BEE®®E | 661,961 721,067
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRIA - e
other receivables o EL b JiE W 38 22 604 359
Financial assets at fair BEAFERA
value through i A kB 1B
profit or loss ZTREE 23 480 519
Restricted cash ZRHIER & 24 - 7,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEESEEY 26 540,836 162,407
Total current assets MEEELLE 541,920 170,785
Total assets EEHARE 1,203,881 891,852

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAETT
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to ZAQFEFFHA
the Company’s equity holders B R FHE
Share capital &% A 27 6,684 5,580
Reserves i 28 1,185,640 872,770
Totalequity ~ ~~~ f®=#&® 1192324 @ 878,350
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H e RIB &
FESTZIB 29 11,557 13,502
Total liabilites ~~ &f#®{ 11,557 13,502
Total equity and liabilities EaRkBERE 1,203,881 891,852
Netcurrentassets ==~ W"BXERE 0 530,363 157,283
Total assets less current liabilities BEAFERABEE 1,192,324 878,350
On behalf of the Board
REREEZ
XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
BRIXE =B
Director Director
EBZE EBZE

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-EFNF+TA=+T—HLEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

RRARERBEAERL
Non-
controlling
Share Share Contributed Other Exchange Retained interests
capital  premium surplus  reserves reserve  earnings R Total
RAE  RORE BEBEH  HtRHE  NERE  RKREEF 55 A&t

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000  HKS$°000
TR TERT TR TR TER THERT TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2009 R-BEhF-F—Hz&H 5,580 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 371,397 67,702 1,264,669
Comprehensive income ZEMKE
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 85,845 29,078 114,923
Other comprehensive income Hin2EKE
Exchange differences BREBINHBL A

arising on translation of HBRREEZ

the financial statements of R AR

foreign subsidiaries - - - - (347) - (1) (348)
Total comprehensive income 2HKEAE - - - - (347) 85,845 29,077 114,575
Transaction with owners HBEBAZRS
Shares issued under share options 1R AL 7B A E 2

scheme of the Company (Note 27)  #{1Rkln (Hfzt27) 104 82,810 - - - - - 82,914
Issue of new shares (Note 27) BATHR (Hf7t27) 1,000 299,000 - - - - - 300,000
Share issue expenses BIIRM 2 X - (120) - - - - - (120)
Disposal of 20% equity interest in HE—RMBRF20%

a subsidiary (Note 36) TR#E (#7:236) - - - 87,581 - - 66,157 153,738
Total transactions with owners  EEFAZRZHLE 1,104 381,690 - 87,581 - - 66,157 536,532

Balance at 31 December 2009 R-ZZAFE+=A

=t+-R2&s 6,684 930,020 168,434 108,785 81,675 457,242 162,936 1,915,776
The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of FOSE1TBE ZWEF NG BRR 2 HEF I
these consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equlty

GEfRaBER

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ARAERFHHE AEG
Non-
controlling
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange  Retained interests
capital  premium surplus  reserves reserve  eamings FEERR Total
BA  ROEE  BAAHK  Hols  SMNERE  REEA B A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FET FET TR FET FET TR FET
Balance at 1 January 2008 R-ZZEENF—A—H
Z iR 5,580 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 46,013 1,100,860
Comprehensive income 2HEKE
Profit for the year F P A - - - - - 114,350 21,328 135,678
Other comprehensive income Hb2E
Exchange differences arising on BREGINHTE D 7]
translation of the financial MBMREEZ
statements of foreign subsidiaries [EH =58 - - - - 41,062 - 2,603 43,665
Total comprehensive income 2HEIKEAEE - - - - 41,062 114,350 23,931 179,343
Transaction with owners HBEBAZRS
Purchase of 5% equity interest in Wi — KRB AR
a subsidiary 5% - - - (18,292) - - (2,242) (15,534)
Total transactions with owners ~ BEFEEAZRZHAE - - - (13,292) - - (2,242)  (15,534)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-ZENF+ZA
=t-HBz&R 5580 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 371,397 67,702 1,264,669
The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of FSEE1TOE LM G AU EHRR 2 EP I
these consolidated financial statements. e
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Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
—EENFE —ZEE)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
hg=d FERT FHT
Cash flows from operating REXBECHESRE
activities
Cash generated from operations REFTBIR S 33(a) 304,532 139,185
Interest paid BERFE (464) (1,544)
Hong Kong income tax paid ENEBREH (566) (352)
Overseas income tax paid B8 INTERL (37,641) (38,449)
Net cash generated from REEE
operating activities R /TR 265,861 98,840
Cash flows from investing activities REZEZRERE
Purchase of 5% equity interest in WHE —RMIE A A
a subsidiary 5% % 1 - (15,534)
Purchase of property, BEWE KB
plant and equipment N & A 16 (19,592) (13,942)
Purchase of leasehold land EEMHE T 17 - (1,092)
Purchase of intangible assets BEBRLEE 18 - (673)
Proceeds from disposals of property,  HEME « BEK
plant and equipment and HEREE LM
leasehold land FTiS 338 33(b) 1,840 1,308
Interest received 2UFE 7,598 4,400
Acquisition of available-for-sale W AT &
financial assets TREE 19 (23,400) -
Proceeds from disposal of 20% equity —H & —KH B
interest in a subsidiary that does not N E 2 20% M RE T
result in losing control of the subsidiary It & F 5 £
AN NGIR I
Z B IE 36 153,738 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REESE
investing activities (FrA) e FE 120,184 (25,533

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an
these consolidated financial statements.

integral part of

7 e
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Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2009 2008
—EELF —TEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt FHET FATT
Cash flows from financing activities BETERERE
Proceeds from inception of R FEHARTTE R
short term bank loans P55k 18 - 15,075
Repayment of short term bank loans BIERBRITER (15,209) (43,439)
Proceeds from issuance BT EBR
of new ordinary shares FT{8 538 382,794 -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash S [R#I3H 4
HA () 6,872 (1,112)
Increase in short-term bank deposit 52 HASR 1T B 0 (137,441) (124,300)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BmEEBRE
financing activities (FrA) B4 %5 237,016 (153,776)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERAEEEY
and cash equivalents z&m CRL)
R 623,061 (80,469)
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and R4 NS SEY
cash equivalents ZEH (BB),/
W2k (348) 28,014
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRe REE
beginning of the year EEY 517,261 569,716
Cash and cash equivalents at FREASRES
the end of the year ZEY 26 1,139,974 517,261

The notes on pages 85 to 179 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”), are principally engaged in the
sales of electronic payment products and services,
sales of electronic power meters and solutions,
provision of telecommunication solutions and
operation value-added services, provision of financial
solutions, services and related products and provision
of payment solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 12 March 2010.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement on complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)

Standards and amendments effective in
2009 which are relevant to and have been
adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 (revised) ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ — effective 1 January 2009. The
revised standard prohibits the presentation
of items of income and expenses (that
is ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring
‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be
presented separately from owner changes
in equity in a statement of comprehensive
income. As a result, the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity all owner changes in equity,
whereas all non-owner changes in equity
are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that
it also is in conformity with the revised
standard. Since the change in accounting
policy only impacts presentation aspects,
there is no impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Share-based
payment’ — effective 1 January 2009 deals
with vesting conditions and cancellations. It
clarifies that vesting conditions are service
conditions and performance conditions only.
Other features of a share-based payment
are not vesting conditions. These features
would need to be included in the grant date
fair value for transactions with employees
and others providing similar services; they
would not impact the number of awards
expected to vest or valuation there of
subsequent to grant date. All cancellations,
whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting
treatment. The Group and Company has
adopted HKFRS 2 (amendment) from 1
January 2009. The amendment does not
have a material impact on the Group’s or
Company'’s financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

@

Standards and amendments effective in
2009 which are relevant to and have been
adopted by the Group: (continued)
HKFRS 7 (amendment), ‘Financial
Instruments — Disclosures’ — effective 1
January 2009. The amendment requires
enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. In particular,
the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy. As the change in
accounting policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on earnings
per share.

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ — effective
1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14, ‘Segment reporting’. It requires a
‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on the
same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. Operating segments are reported
in a manner that is more consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. It has resulted in
a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments, and has had no impact on the
reported results or financial position of the
Group. Accordingly, as disclosed in the
segment information (Note 6), both the
current year and the comparative figures of
prior year have been presented under the
new reporting segmentation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)®

HKAS 32
(Amendment)®

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)"

HKFRS 1
(Amendment)®@

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)®@

HKFRS 9@

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

(Amendments)®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 170

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

HK Interpretation 4
(Amendments)®

Improvements to HKFRSs
Related Party Disclosures

Financial Instruments:
Presentation —
Classification of Right
Issues

Eligible Hedged ltems

First-Time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Financial Instruments

Prepayment of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from
Customers

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Leases — Determination
of the Length of Lease
Term in Respect of Hong
Kong Land Leases
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations

in issue but not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group:
(continued)

(1)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

(2)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010

(3)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2010

(4)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010

(6)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011

(6)  Effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group has commenced an assessment
of the impact of adoption of standards,
amendments and interpretations listed
above but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards
would result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and financial
position.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which
the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement (Note 2.7(a)).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Transactions and non-controlling interests
— ‘economic entity approach’

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recognised in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)
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Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair
value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component

of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which

they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or
over lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office furniture and equipment 18%-25%
Plant and equipment 9%-25%
Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within administrative
expenses in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the companies in the consolidated
group, is classified as investment property.

The cost of an investment property comprises its
purchase price and any costs directly attributable
to bringing the property to its intended use.

After initial recognition, investment property is
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost of the investment
property over its estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or group of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill
arose.

Brand name and customer list

Acquired brand name and customer list
are shown at historical cost. Brand name
and customer list have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of brand name and customer
list over their estimated useful lives (2-5
years).

2. EXETTHERBE )

2.7 BREE

(@)

(b)

Gk
BEERBERABBNEE B H
AREBERIGFTEEHRE AR
BHEEFENRFEIHEE -
WENBARNHERREEL
BEAN -BUBRLIBHEGFE
TTRE RIS - 03 AR R 5 R
BERIEK BB ZREERN
THRE HEEENEEERA
HEEREZREEN -

RRENANS  HEeE kR
RetEEM BB NoETE
AR ERELBEZEBA M
ZREELBUS—HRSES

[=1=JyAN

B o

AaRER A

mhE kTR ERESL KA
R mEREERERRENT
R Wi ARAR R AT # 8
SRR o BEIHA A B AROX K dn g K&
BERENRADBEEEMAGA
CAEH (225%F) 515 -



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)

Software development costs

Acquired software development costs are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives (five years).

Costs associated with developing or
maintaining computer software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Costs that are directly associated with the
development of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group,
and that will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year,
are recognised as intangible assets. Costs
include the employee costs incurred as
a result of developing software and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs
recognised as assets are amortised over
their estimated useful lives.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation, which are at least
tested annually for impairment and are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade, other
receivables, prepayments and deposits’,
‘due from a related company’, ‘restricted
cash’, ‘short-term bank deposits’, and
‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance
sheet (Notes 2.11 and 2.12).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the income statement within
‘other gains/(losses), net’, in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement
also with other gains/(losses), net when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(b) Loans and receivables (continued)

(c)

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm'’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market and those fair value that cannot be
reliably measured, are measured at cost
less impairment.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and direct overheads Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default
or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement within administrative expenses.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held at call with banks with
original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
as borrowings under current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

2.13 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and issue of
borrowings including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision, where appropriate, is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEFHERBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (continued) 217 BERA (&)
(b)  Pension obligations b) RBUIEKTET

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme. The assets of the
Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised
as an employee benefit expense when they
are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)  Pension obligations (continued)

(c)

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately
7% to 20% of the wages for the year of
those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions
to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans. The fair
value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.
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2. EXRETTHERBE )
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Share-based compensation (continued)
The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (hominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

(d) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing,
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Sales of services

Services are provided on a transaction basis
or as a fixed-price contract, with contract
terms generally ranging from less than one
year to two years.

Revenue from transaction contracts is
recognised at the contractual rates as
services are delivered and direct expenses
incurred.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is
recognised using the stage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
agreed milestones of work performed and
is shown after eliminating sales within the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) Sales of services (continued)

If circumstances arise that may change
the original estimates of revenues, costs
or extent of progress toward completion,
estimates are revised. These revisions may
result in increases or decreases in estimated
revenues or costs and are reflected in the
income statement in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(d) Lease income — operating lease
Lease income under operating lease is
recognised over the term of the lease on a
straight line basis.

2.20 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value in the consolidated income
statement where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all the attached conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Government grants (continued)
Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset. The
grant is recognised as income over the life
of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

2.22 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial
and technological feasibility, and costs can
be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

2.23 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s operations are subject to special
considerations and significant risks. These
include risks associated with, among others,
the political, economic and legal environment
and competition in the industry.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”), Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) and US
dollar (“USD”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HKD,
USD and EURO, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than HKD or RMB, which
are the functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group. The
Group currently does not hedge its foreign
Currency exposure.

As HKD is pegged to USD, management
believes that the exchange rate risk for
translations between HKD and USD do not
have material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HKD is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with HKD as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2009, if EURO had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
HKD with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$49,000 lower/higher
(2008: HK$144,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of EURO denominated
cash and bank deposit and current account
with related parties which have foreign
currency other than HKD.

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2009, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$757,000 lower/higher
(2008: HK$53,000 higher/lower, mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash
and bank, trade receivables, loan as well
as the current account with related parties
which have functional currency other than
RMB.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency (continued)

At 31 December 2009, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$654,000 lower/higher
(2008: HK$1,179,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of USD denominated
cash and bank, trade receivables, deposit
as well as the current account with related
parties which have foreign currency other
than RMB.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because the Group has publicly
traded equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
investment portfolio is continuously reviewed
and carefully monitored in accordance with
the limits set by the executive Directors.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and other receivables,
and cash deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, restricted cash, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to reputable and credit-worthy
customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the authorisation of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods and services to the top five
customers constituted 54% of the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 December
2009 (2008: 52%).

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount
of available financing, including short-term
bank loans. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining adequate amount
of cash and cash equivalents and flexibility
in funding through having available sources
of financing.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3. BIEBREE »

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MERBEE (8)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (@) mEEZEE (8)
Surplus cash held by the operating entities KEERITHBABEEESEE
over and above balance required for working FFrmEciieB% BEARS
capital management are transferred to interest HEHRZFRRITERUE
bearing bank deposits with appropriate BEERERSHESRL R
maturities to manage its overall liquidity TZENFF+ZA=+—H &K
position. As at 31 December 2009, the Group SE2REeEMBAEEFEEMAY
maintained cash and cash equivalents of 1,139,974,000% 7. (—Z & & N\
approximately HK$1,139,974,000 (2008: F : 517,261,000/ 7T) © FEHI &
HK$517,261,000) that is expected to be NEMESRBECEERE -
readily available to meet the cash outflows of
its financial liabilities.
The table below analyses the Group’s non- TRBELEHSRTHEZAY
derivative financial liabilities into relevant HHBE®MST - BAREERIELT
maturity grouping based on the remaining S BEES REHEIHBEA
period at the balance sheet date to the Al ZEMMBEENSERELAR
contractual maturity date. The amounts BMIRBE M BRI ROTET
disclosed in the table are the contractual AR T ZE A AEIE R A R
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due MEERHEREER -
within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —FEZF ZFFEFE HFUL Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEL FTAT FAL FAL FAEL

At 31 December 2009 R-ZBENE+-A=1+—-H
Borrowings EEA - - - - -
Trade and other payables — JEfBRE R E BN ZIE 363,402 - - - 363,402
Total w3t 363,402 - - - 363,402
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENE+ZA=1+—-H
Borrowings N 15,725 - - - 15,725
Trade and other payables  JES BR 30 M E i FE 5 2008 334,681 - - - 334,681
Total o 350,406 - - - 350,406
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets,
except for cash placed with banks.

At 31 December 2009, if interest rates on all
interest-bearing cash and cash equivalents
had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$11,400,000 higher/lower (2008:
HK$5,173,000) due to interest income
earned on market interest rate.

All the bank borrowings were settled during
the year ended 31 December 2009.

BREERERE &)

3.1 HBEBRER (&)
€ FIEmE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. WKEKMER @)

(continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

3.2 EXEKBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2009 and
2008 were as follows:

AEEEREANBENRREAEE
BEUNSBERENARERMB AR
1R 131 3 A Ko /3 EL fth ) 25 40 BB & 7 2R A
m THHBREERAEBUABRDE

RERFNHEENERE - AEE A H
ERABRRTRENEHE - ABRE
BIA A ~ 377 37 A 4D 3k h & B E VAR

DIEIA -

AEBREBEEANABL RETEAN -
BEARBELRTVIZEEBRRAER
MERAHE -

Bl

R-ZETZAER_ZEENEF+_A=
+—RAZEXEBELERDT

As at 31 December

BR+=—BA=+—H
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total borrowings (Note 31) e R (H15231) - 15,209
Total equity B 1,915,776 1,264,669
Gearing ratio s BEL=X - 0.01
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. WKEKRERE @)

(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 DFEME

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date
without any deduction for transaction costs.

Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the balance sheet at fair
value, this requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value
measurement hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

IR AT B 33K e R A PR K 2 B T MERURA 1B
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group's assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 December 2009.

BRERER @)

3.3 DFEME (B)

TREVWAEFBR _ZZENF+ A
=+ —BERAFEFENEENERE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R EFZR E=H et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET AT FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at A ER Am Fsk
fair value through EiEzeREE
profit or loss
— Trading securities —BHEE 480 - - 480
Available-for-sale AT EemEE
financial assets - - 23,400 23,400
Total assets BB E 480 - 23,400 23,880
Total liabilities wEE - - - -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(b) Contract revenue recognition

(c)

According to the accounting policies of fixed-
price contracts as stated in note 2.19, the Group
uses the “percentage of completion method”
to determine the appropriate revenues, costs
and work-in-progress (“WIP”) to be recognised
in a given period. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the service performed
and accepted by the customers up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total services to
be performed.

Upon applying the percentage of completion
method, the Group needs to estimate the
gross profit margin of each contract, which is
determined based on the estimated total contract
costs and total contract sum. If the actual gross
profit margin of each contract differs from the
management’s estimates, the contract cost and
WIP to be recognised within the next year will
need to be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that, except for the provision
made, there were no expected losses, where the
estimated total contract costs exceed the total
estimated contract revenue, and needed to be
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of receivables

The Directors determine the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based
on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition. The Directors reassess
the provision at each balance sheet date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

(d) Estimated impairment of goodwill

(e)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2.7(a). The
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
(CGUs) in relation to the electronic power meters
and solutions group has been determined based
on value-in-use. These calculations require the
use of estimates (Note 18).

Capitalisation of labour cost and overheads
The labour cost and overheads that are directly
attributable to the services provided are being
capitalised as part of inventories. The Group
has developed certain criteria based on HKAS
2 “Inventories” in making judgement whether
the labour cost and overheads are qualified to
be capitalised as part of inventories. The labour
cost capitalised are mostly salaries of the direct
labour rendering the services and overheads
including but not limited to travelling, marketing
and computer expenses. The amount capitalised
is capped at the probable future economic
benefits expected to flow into the Group.

4.
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TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME,
OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of
electronic payment products and services, sales of
electronic power meters and solutions, provision of
telecommunication solutions and operation value - added
services, provision of financial solutions, services and
related products and provision of payment solutions

and services. Turnover, other income and other
gains/(losses), net recognised during the year are as

5. BXH
E/@E)
AEBEZEEEXERAHEE T NEMRIR
% HEERFEERRBERAR BRHE

AR R B IEERT

FE - R &IEEERNK RS

R NRTE - NFRNEHERZ EER - Hitlx

AREMUES /(BE) FEIT -

H At BARE M
FHR

Rt BBIR
AN 5]

follows:
For the year ended
BETHEEL
2009 2008
—ETAF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Turnover S
Sales of electronic payment products HEE T ER KRS
and services 492,942 493,589
Sales of electronic power meters and solutions  $4EE LS B E R RFRFTE 253,586 350,167
Provision of telecommunication REENBAFTREL
solutions and operation B2 E RS
value-added services 359,646 248,105
Provision of financial solutions, RIESRBATE
services and related products AR & 48 BE E o 148,968 120,608
Provision of payment solutions and services I AR R R IR 22,452 -
Rental income HE WA 924 999
1,278,518 1,213,468
Other income H U A
Interest income ﬂ S A 7,598 4,400
Value added tax refund (Note below) RERER (M) 20,321 16,694
Subsidy income @HEJ& 1,923 2,969
Other service income E A AR AGUA 1,595 2,946
Others Eb 3,757 2,445
35,194 29,454
Other gains/(losses), net Hib e /(EB) F58
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets HEZAFE qu/\/ﬁuf'JiféﬂE
at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEE W (EE) 978 (6,613)
Dividend income on financial assets %*Q$TEE+7\/_\7FUQ
at fair value through profit or loss FiEzeREERSWA 53 432
Fair value loss on financial assets A ER ANn sk EiE
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEERNFEEE (39) (251)
992 (6,432)
Turnover, other income and BHEE - HMW AR
other gains/(losses), net Hiwzs /(B18) F8 1,314,704 1,236,490

Note:

The amount represents the Group's entitlement to value added
tax refund in relation to sales of self-developed software products

in the PRC.

Hret
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports reviewed by the Board of
Directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business from
a product perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating
segments in these internal reports:

(@)

Electronic payment products and services -
sales of electronic data capture point-of-sale
(“EDC-POS”) terminals;

Electronic power meters and solutions -
manufacturing and sales of electronic power
meters, data collection terminals and provision
of information system consultancy services;

Telecommunication solutions and operation value-
added services — provision of telecommunication
platform operation services;

Financial solutions, services and related products
— provision of information system consultancy
and integration services and sales of information
technology products to financial institutions and
banks; and

Payment solutions and services — provision of
mobile payment solutions and services.
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6. 7EER »
AEEREB ST WA REEDHIT -

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group's revenues and results for
the year by operating segment is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2009

BE-SBNF+-A=T-HLEE

Telecom-
munication
solutions Financial
Electronic and solutions,

Electronic power operation services Payment

payment meters and value-added and related solutions

products solutions services products and

and services BHHE EM@R SRR services
BETXA ERk ARKEE FR-RE AR Others Group
EmRE% BRER BERYE REBER FRERRB Hity r5E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET TET TET TET FET THET
Segment turnover NEEESE 492,942 253,586 359,646 186,032 22,452 2,660 1,317,318
Inter-segment turnover SEMEEE - - - (37,064) - (1,736) (38,800)
Turnover from external customers RENDEP 2 EERE 492,942 253,586 359,646 148,968 22,452 924 1,278,518
Segmental EBITDA S ¥BEBITDA 102,435 25,033 148,271 23,205 (45,970) (60,206) 192,768
Depreciation nE (1,918) (11,256) (10,863) (15,952) (241) (443) (40,673)
Amortisation 5] (5) (7,100) - - - (760) (7,865)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) DREEEN /(BR) 100,512 6,677 137,408 7,253 (46,211) (61,409) 144,230
Finance costs BB AR (464)
Profit before income tax % P55 i 7 143,766
Income tax expense Frg M (28,843)
Profit for the year FREF 114,923

Note: /;/75? :

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. Finance costs
are not allocated to segment as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has
reorganised the business segments such that revenues generated
from business process operations have been reported in the
financial solutions, services and related products segment, and
revenue generated from information technology operation value-
added services and telecommunication solutions, services and
related products have been reported in the telecommunication
solutions and operation valued-added services segment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
reported revenues generated from business process
operations and information technology operation
value-added services as separate segments. The
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

6.

DHEER &)

REZE

ARHR
BETE

—EENFF+_A=F+—RHLEFE -
REBUABERSD B AESRAEBELRE
BEBERBEEZRA - LBRET
5| NEARFE 2 2HRMEF—H -

Year ended 31 December 2008
BE-ZTT\F+-A=t—-HLFE

Telecom-
munication
solutions Financial
Electronic and solutions,

Electronic power operation services Payment

payment  meters and value-added  and related solutions

products solutions services products and

and services BEETE BaR SRR services
EFEA Emk HEREE FR RER SRR Others Group
B R AR BRAR EERS HHER FREERS Hity AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T T FHT FET FET
Segment turnover NEEER 493,589 350,167 248,105 120,608 - 2,923 1,215,392
Inter-segment turnover DS EE - - - - - (1,924) (1,924)
Turnover from external customers REMNIRPZ E¥HE 493,589 350,167 248,105 120,608 - 999 1,213,468
Segmental EBITDA 5 BEBITDA 119,336 62,033 136,234 (29,746) - (61,720) 226,137
Depreciation neE (1,730) (11,148) (11,167) (14,787) - (436) (39,268)
Amortisation B (5) (8,007) - - - (760) (8,772
Segmental operating profit/(loss) PREEEEF /(B58) 117,601 42,878 125,067 (44,533) - (62,916) 178,097
Finance costs EEE N (1,544)
Profit before income tax AT ST AT T 176,553
Income tax expense FERAS (40,875)
Profit for the year FREF 135,678

BN (FE) ARAF —ETAEFEER
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EESR

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December RZZEZNF+T_A=+—HZHEEEK
2009 and additions to non-current assets for the year BEEEE - EENF+_A=T—"HB1%F
ended 31 December 2009 are as follows: EZERBEENRENAT !
Telecom-
munication
Electronic solutions Financial
power and solutions,
Electronic meters operation services and Payment
payment and value-added related solutions
products solutions services products and
and services Bt E EBR SRR services
EFXA EmRk HREREE FE BER IR Others Group
EmRkE% BRER BERS HEER  FEREH Hit A5
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment assets SREE 565,707 458,404 494,383 153,929 33,646 612,261 2,318,330
Segment liabilities HEEE (128,234) (104,826) (72,193) (39,478) (6,015) (51,808) (402,554)
Additions to non-current assets FERPEENTE 2,842 1,471 9,193 3,726 2,319 4 19,592
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EESR @
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December RZZEENFTZA=T—RHZHBEER
2008 and additions to non-current assets for the year BEHEEE_TT\F+-_A=+—HLHF
ended 31 December 2008 are as follows: EZIERBEERRENT !
Telecom-
munication
solutions Financial
Electronic and solutions,
Electronic power operation services Payment
payment  meters and value-added  and related solutions
products solutions services products and
and services B BHER SRR services
ERSi ERk HEREE FR RBEK SRR Others Group
B i R AR BRAR EERS HEER FRRERS Aty r£E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment assets NEEE 483,916 516,067 321,918 131,566 - 215,159 1,668,616
Segment liabilities DEEE (131,257) (141,619) (30,990) (34,425) - (65,656) (403,947
Additions to non-current assets FERBEENRE 1,796 4,567 5,160 4,159 - 25 15,707

Additions to non-current assets comprises additions
to leasehold land, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets including additions resulting from
acquisition through business combinations.

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors
with respect to total assets and total liabilities are
measured in a manner consistent with that of the
financial statements. These assets and liabilities are
allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s
length. The revenue from external parties reported
to the Board of Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the income statement.

RBEENERIEHEE L - W - K
ERBELRBEEENAE  BREBER
BFETHBEENRE -

MEZEREEENEREREZSERA
B EHRR — BN EE - REEERA
B D BRER M DB ©

DM ZHER AT EELET - MEZSIE
REIBES 2WARRAREIBS R —HHH
ERTE e
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group's
revenue by geographical location, which is determined
by the country in which the customer is located, is

TEEE @)
REBMPNEETT - REBIRE S FELY
Wkt E T

as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—HLEE
2009 2008
—EEIF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
PRC R B A B 1,163,223 1,074,872
Hong Kong, South East Asia, E% HEo - EBEREAM
United States of America and others 115,295 138,596
1,278,518 1,213,468

The Group's non-current assets by geographical
location, which is determined by the country in which
the asset is located, is as follows:

AEBERZEEME 2 IR EERIE
T

As at 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLFE

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FETT

PRC PR K 306,889 315,932
Hong Kong A 848 579
United States of America £ 1,295 14
309,032 316,525
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses

7. MHEEED ZBX
RIFERE - HEMXRITRBAAZS

and administrative expenses are analysed as X O
follows:
2009 2008
—BBRE  —TT)\&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Auditor’s remuneration ZENEM B & 2,790 2,732
Depreciation of property, Y RENMRIETE

plant and equipment (Note 16) (Htit16) 40,565 39,159
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y ¥ E (f13215)

(Note 15) 108 109
Amortisation of leasehold land ME T (Hat17)

(Note 17) 1,094 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEESEE (Hit18)

(Note 18) 6,771 7,702
Employee benefit expense BEBAHAX

(including Directors’ emoluments) (RREEMWS) (#1:29)

(Note 9) 253,409 216,251
Costs of inventories sold (Note 217) EHTFEEAR (Hit21) 508,509 519,108
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFEXEHEERS

of land and buildings 24,319 10,363
Operating lease rentals in wiE EXHERT

respect of equipment 13,058 12,084
Research and development costs 9 R AR 74,827 22,503
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BELREHEES

plant and equipment and THbE R

leasehold land 107 905
Provision for impairment of trade JFE U BR S0 (B s

receivables 689 14,244
Write-back of provision for impairment & it B 5 50 (B B 4 78 [2]

of trade receivables (3,330) -
Provision for inventories FERiE

- merchandise goods — Eoh 4,539 2,065

— capitalised labour cost — BN ZBEIAR

and overheads R - 28,881
Write-back of provision for BOoREFTERE
obsolete inventories - (8,890)
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8. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement and included
in administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2009 amounted to HK$883,000 (2008:
HK$2,776,000).

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

SNEFRE B
REZE-_TETANF+_A=+—HLFE
RERE R E R P ER BT ATTERAZ B
P % E518 - 883,000/ L (Z T T )\ F ¢
2,776,000/87C) °

BERTAX (BERESEHE)

EMOLUMENTS)
2009 2008
—EENEF —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Wages and salaries TERF® 224,296 193,278
Pension costs and RIS R
social security costs (Note a) MHEREKA (Hfita) 29,113 22,973
253,409 216,251
Notes: Wit :

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans
Contributions totalling HK$5,245,000 (2008: HK$5,541,000)
were payable to the plans at the year end.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2008: Nil).
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(b)

= a—
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EERAFEX (BREEH=)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#&)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Notes: (continued) Miat - (58)
Directors’ emoluments (b) EEE%
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or FRAUEMESHEXRERETAHESLHE (=
agreed to waive any emolument during the year (2008: Nil). TTNF - |) o
The directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent to FREFHESHEERNIZEEEMNMFE -HEZ
key management compensation. The remuneration of every ZENFFTZA=+T—HLFE  BREFHM
Director for the year ended 31 December 2009, is set out 2T :
below:
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Fees Salary bonus EEXZRHAE Total
Name of Director BEERS e 2 BETEA TR GRS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FERT FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 360 - - 12 372
Kui Man Chun REE - 1,680 2,100 12 3,792
Xu Wensheng BxE - 1,156 1,500 12 2,668
Li Wenijin ENE - 1,080 1,300 12 2,392
Xu Chung Jun ®REE - 837 1,000 12 1,849
360 4,753 5,900 60 11,073
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Yang Lei, Raymond (Note) 5iE (Hat) 11 - - - 11
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard
(Note) SRIEE (K1at) 11 - - - 11
22 - - - 22
Independent Non-Executive Bk #{TES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai EIRE 90 - - - 90
Leung Wai Man, Roger Z2ER 90 - - - 90
Xu Sitao HRE 90 - - - 90
270 - - - 270
652 4,753 5,900 60 11,365
Note: Biat -

Mr. Yang Lei, Raymond and Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard
have been appointed as non-executive directors on 26

November 2009.

BREEERRBERER_TTAFT—A=+
NABZRERIFNITES -

BN (FE) ARAF —ETAEFER
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—= a—
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EERANMX (BREESEMHE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#8)
EMOLU MENTS) (continued)
Notes: (continued) Mtat: (4%)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (b) EZBMS (&)
The directors’ emoluments for the year are equivalent to FRNEEMEHENISSEENEE BE—
key management compensation. The remuneration of every T NE+-A=+—HILEE  SLEEHH
Director for the year ended 31 December 2008, is set out S INE
below:
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Fees Salary bonus BEZRAKE Total
Name of Director BEEMA we e ISTEAL FT &I RS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
Cheung Yuk Fung iRk E & 360 - - 12 372
Kui Man Chun RER - 1,200 5,000 12 6,212
Xu Wensheng Bt - 914 1,500 12 2,426
Li Wenjin FTYE - 840 1,300 12 2,152
Xu Chung Jun BEE - 715 1,200 12 1,927
360 3,669 9,000 60 13,089
Independent Non-Executive B FHITES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai EIRE 60 - - - 60
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZER 60 - - - 60
Xu Sitao FRE 60 - - - 60
180 - - - 180
540 3,669 9,000 60 13,269
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9.

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included four Directors (2008: four).
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2008: one)
individual during the year are as follows:

EERAPX (BRESHE)

(%)
Mgz ()

(c) ERBEFAL
rEEAFERARRFALTRRENZES (=
TENF MR AFEERNBT - (ZF
TNEF  —FB) AL ZHEEI AT -

2009 2008
—EZhE —ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBINEWRE 2,667 3,120
Pension cost BIRE KA
- defined contribution plan — REHEKTE - -
2,667 3,120
>IN N4 R
The emoluments fell within the following band: M2 T oI5
Number of individuals
A"
2009 2008
Emolument band B < 48 71 —EThEF ZTTNF
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 5,000,000/ 7T
1 1
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10. FINANCE COSTS

10. B E KA

2009 2008

—EBAEF —EE)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHEIT

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 847 & 2k & & X7 F & 464 1,544

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate

1. FTBBAX

EBFIEHUAIAE Ml R BRI

of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable 16.5% (ZZEZT N\ F : 16.5%) 57 & ° /FH

profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

356 F BB I BASF PO fis st AR BURF) - 1 A0E
BB RR S BEHE -

2009 2008
—EEAF —ZTENF
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Current income tax REFFTIS

- Hong Kong profits tax — BANEM 1,000 530
- Overseas taxation — GINEIR 41,806 45,323
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS T (4,015) (5,478)

(Over)/under provision BAEFE (B5),/
in previous year BETR (9,948) 500
Income tax expense RS 28,843 40,875
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11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. BB X (1)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from REBERRFTEH DG M A B I8 R A E AR
the theoretical amount that would arise using the REBRRMNNINETFIBREMAENER
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the M2 =ZRENAT -

consolidated entities as follows:

2009 2008
—EFENF —ZET)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT T
Profit before income tax MR BTS84 B s A 143,766 176,553
Tax calculated at domestic tax BB E R R E A s A 2 5 A
rates applicable to profits SR E 2 I8
in the respective countries 21,637 24,115
Effect of changes in tax rates MERES & (1,903) (2,179)
Income not subject to taxation TEZRTBA (2,718) (7,829)
Expenses not deductible for FRBME TR 2
taxation purposes 4,232 7,144
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B8 R MR 2 BB E B
tax losses - (1,385)
Unrecognised tax losses AERBIERE 17,543 20,509
(Over)/under provision BAFE (HB58),/ BETR
in previous year (9,948) 500
Tax charge HIEMAX 28,843 40,875
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15% MEFHERAMERI5% (ZTT)\F -
(2008: 14%). The increase is caused by a change 14%) o EARETIARE B Z B QB8
in the profitability of the Group's subsidiaries in the BB 2 B H IR ETE -

respective countries.
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12.LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 12. XA BIEZFEAEBLERE

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

A=A AFE(LE51868,820,000/8

COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company PIN/N

is dealt with in the financial statements of the T(ZEF
Company to the extent of HK$68,820,000 (2008: AR ERAR IR -

HK$36,508,000).

= )\ £ : 36,508,000/ 7T) AR

13.DIVIDENDS 13. 1R 2
No dividend has been paid or declared by the FA - AR WEENKEREAHRE (=
Company during the year (2008: Nil). TTN\F | o

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3R EF|
(a) Basic (a) B

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREXRBMIDRARBEEFE A
Eﬁmﬂ VFEAE BT E BN

BEGTHE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
Profit attributable to equity holders of AR F#EZEHA A
the Company (HK$’000) FEMER A (T87T) 85,845 114,350
Weighted average number of ordinary B 317 # % h1tE
shares in issue (thousands) EHE (TR) 2,481,312 2,231,973
Basic earnings per share = %$ gl
(HKS per share) (FMETT) 0.035 0.051
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated
by adjusting the number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive shares. Share options represent
potentially dilutive shares of the Company. For
the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that would have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
annual weighted average market share price of
the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
these outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 is the same as
the basic earnings per share as the conversion
of potential ordinary shares in relation to the
outstanding share options would have an anti-
dilutive effect to the basic earnings per share.

14. BREFN &)
(b) #F

FREERNIREBMAEBEEE
Bz BRmAEDETEBKREAE
AR BREEALRBEEER
0 o BBAHETT M - 4R M R 1T (2 BB A
MR ERE s B EEHE  NEX
ARAYE CERARRBND ZZF N
BFHmE) BEZRNHEAE - &L
A EZ By 8B T R R AR B R
BT EREC BT ZRMEB e -

BE-FTZNFRZFTN\FTA
ST HALEFEZEREERANNE
BERZFIMER - 0 )5 E 855 K
TERRESRzBETBRS S Y
BRELBANEERBEEZZE
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. B EWE

Group Company
rEHE AT
Buildings Buildings
BF S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 January 2008 R=-Z2ZNF—A—H
Cost [D#%N 3,548 5,157
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (185) (269)
Net book amount FREFE 3,363 4,888
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZZENE
+-A=t-—ALEE
Opening net book amount H )RR EDH (8 3,363 4,888
Transfer to property, HAME - WEMEE
plant and equipment (Note 16) (B1at16) (1,285) -
Depreciation e (109) (257)
Closing net book amount B4R BREDFE 1,969 4,631
At 31 December 2008 R=-ZBENF+=-A=+—H
Cost [D#%N 2,193 5,157
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (224) (526)
Net book amount FREFE 1,969 4,631
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZAFE-A—H
Cost B AN 2,193 5,157
Accumulated depreciation ZFE (224) (526)
Net book amount FREFE 1,969 4,631
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZThE
+=-A=t+—ALEFE
Opening net book amount HAWRREDF (B 1,969 4,631
Transfer to property, BAYE - WENLEKE
plant and equipment (Note 16) (Htit16) (34) -
Depreciation = (108) (258)
Closing net book amount AR AR T 3HAE 1,827 4,373
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZEAF+ZA=+—H
Cost (DN 2,153 5,157
Accumulated depreciation REtITE (326) (784)
Net book amount REVFE 1,827 4,373
Fair value (Note below) NEE (KFwT) 2,548 6,104

Note:

The fair value of the investment properties located at 1t R™/&
TR BT IR AE15-1712 as at 31 December 2009 was
assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer,
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited based on current prices in
an active market.
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(continued)
Interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analysed as follows:

15. REWZE (&)

REMEERREEFRESTOT

Group Company
rEE PIN/NE
2009 2009
—EENF —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHIT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: FHEEI
Leases of between 10 to 50 years B10E50F A E 1,827 4,373
The following amounts have been recognised in the WiEalaRkERZSBOT ¢
consolidated income statement:
Group
rEE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
BE+= HETZA
A=+—HILEE =+—HIFE
2009 2008
—EENE —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FHT
Rental income GERAL PN 924 999
Direct operating expenses arising HRESWMAZIKEDSE
from investment property that FIEAEEEEAY
generated rental income (358) (491)

There were no direct operating expenses arising
from investment property that did not generate rental
income during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M EE ’.

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REW = )
(continued)
The period of leases whereby the Group or the AEEZARARELEHOBLEREY
Company leases out its investment property under EZHBNFAFE2F -

operating leases ranged from 1 to 2 years.

At 31 December 2009, the future aggregate minimum R-ZZEZNF+-_A=+—H BREFIAH
rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating HEEBRO 2 RERIEEKE S AR T
leases are as follows:

Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than 1 year —FNR 648 760
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FIUEBRFR - 342
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16. Y% - BMENRKRE
EQUIPMENT

Group
r&E
Office
furniture
Leasehold and
improvements equipment Plant and Motor
Buildings HE WAERE  equipment vehicles Total
BF NEEE KRR BERRE "E CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FEL FET
At 1 January 2008 R-ZENE-F—-H
Cost A 48,712 5,459 133,086 22,464 15,620 225,341
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (1,323) (4,726) (46,159) (2,532) (5,784) (60,524)
Net book amount REFE 47,389 733 86,927 19,932 9,836 164,817
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZZIN\F
TZRZ+T-BLEE
Opening net book amount MEEFE 47,389 733 86,927 19,932 9,836 164,817
Exchange differences EAZE 2,540 50 4,660 1,084 535 8,869
Additions NE 819 - 9,365 409 3,349 13,942
Transfer from investment BERENE
properties (Note 15) (fi£15) 1,285 - - - - 1,285
Disposals (Note 33(b)) L& (Hit33m) - - (152) - (2,061) (2,213)
Depreciation e (3,162) (274) (28,142) (4,439) (3,142) (39,159)
Closing net book amount HRERFE 48,871 509 72,658 16,986 8,517 147,541
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+=-A=1+-H
Cost KA 53,535 5,525 146,327 24,139 15,006 244,532
Accumulated depreciation RitHE (4,664) (5,016) (73,669) (7,153) (6,489) (96,991)
Net book amount REFE 48,871 509 72,658 16,986 8,517 147,541
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ZEINE
TZRZ+T-BLEE
Opening net book amount HEmFE 48,871 509 72,658 16,986 8,517 147,541
Additions RE - 295 15,222 702 3,373 19,592
Transfer from investment BERENE
properties (Note 15) (His#15) 34 - - - - 34
Disposals (Note 33(b)) L& (He£331) (203) - (12) (83) (570) (868)
Depreciation ik (3,213) (330) (28,788) (4,760) (3,474) (40,565)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 45,489 474 59,080 12,845 7,846 125,734
At 31 December 2009 RZBZAF+ZA=1-H
Cost A 53,360 5,820 157,155 24,651 17,287 258,273
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (7,871) (5,346) (98,075) (11,806) (9,441) (132,539)
Net book amount REFE 45,489 474 59,080 12,845 7,846 125,734
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16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$27,704,000 (2008:
HK$27,483,000) has been expensed in cost of
sales and HK$12,194,000 (2008: HK$10,948,000)
in administrative expenses and HK$667,000 (2008:
HK$728,000) in selling expenses.

As at 31 December 2008, bank borrowings are
secured on buildings with a total net book amount of
HK$ 4,818,000 (Note 31). The bank borrowings were
settled during the year ended 31 December 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, banking facilities of
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$22,600,000) are
secured on buildings with a total net book amount of

16. % ~ BERRE 1)

FERM X H27,704,0008 T (ZEF )\ F :
27,483,000 7C) ENHEM AN + &
12,194,000 7T (ZEZF/\4F : 10,948,000
BIT) RITHRE A X 88 A &677,0000% 7T

—TT)\F 728,000 L) RIEEER X

N-ZZEENE+_A=+—0 " RITEZD
LA BR TH 48 )% B 54,818,000/ 7T Z { F 1K
#(M3E31) - IRITEREREBEZE=ZZT 1
F+-_A=+—HILFEEE-

R-ZZEZAF+_A=+—H AER%
20,000,0007T (48 %5 7 #22,600,0007 7T)
ZIRATIER Ty i IR # B 48 584,211,000/8

HK$4,211,000 (Note 31).

TCZ BT R (HEE31) -

Company
¥ /N
Office furniture and equipment
MAERARKE
HK$’000
FETT
At 1 January 2008 R=-ZBZENFE—HA—H
Cost PR AN 12
Accumulated depreciation AFHIfE (12)
Net book amount BRmEFE -
Year ended 31 December 2008 BEZ2_ZEEN\F+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount BV AR ERE -
Depreciation e -
Closing net book amount wx%m¥E -
At 31 December 2008 R=-ZEBENF+=A=+—H
Cost P AR 12
Accumulated depreciation ZRFHITE (12)
Net book amount REVFE -
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_ZEZANF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount BV AR ERE -
Depreciation e -
Closing net book amount HARBREDH(E -
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZEAF+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 12
Accumulated depreciation ZFTE (12)
Net book amount BREFE -
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17.LEASEHOLD LAND

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent
operating lease prepayments and their net book
amounts are analysed as follows:

17. HE T3

AEBREE T ESHERBE2H
HFOR - HERmAESTAT

Group Company
rEH b /N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhF —TT)N\F ZEBEAF —_TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHETT FER FETT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EBEI
Leases of between 10 to B10250F 27
50 years MARE 44,797 45,899 30,378 30,378
Amortisation b (2,790) (1,719) (2,310) (1,551)
Net book amount BREFE 42,007 44,180 28,068 28,827
The movement of the net book amount for leasehold MET i 2 BREFESESHIT ¢
land is as follows:
Group Company
AEH b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF ZTT)N\F ZEBEANF —ZTT)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FET
Net book amount at FYREFE
beginning of year 44,180 43,377 28,827 29,587
Additions INE - 1,092 - -
Amortisation 5N (1,094) (1,070) (759) (760)
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (B:7233(b)) (1,079) - - -
Exchange difference & ZRE - 781 - -
Net book amount at end of year £ EBREF(H 42,007 44,180 28,068 28,827

Amortisation expenses of HK$53,000 (2008:
HK$48,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$1,041,000 (2008: HK$1,022,000) in administrative
expenses.

As at 31 December 2008, bank borrowings are
secured on leasehold land with a total net book amount
of HK$230,000 (Note 31). The bank borrowings were
settled during the year ended 31 December 2009.

53,000/ 7T (—ZFZ )\ F : 48,000/% 1)
HE R TI SHE KA 85 & B 1,041,000
7T (_7 T\ E 1 1,022,000 1) Z 1T

>d+

RZZEZNFE+ZA=+—H8  HfTEFRT)
F AR T (B 42 §8230,000/8 7T 2 T & + b 1
HA (FEE31) - RITEHRERBE_ZTT
NE+-A=+—BLFEREE -
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17.LEASEHOLD LAND (continued)

18.

As at 31 December

2009, bank facilities of
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$22,600,000) are
secured on leasehold land with a total net book

amount of HK$225,000 (Note 31).

17. 7 HE L+ (@)

HtEHR AR (PEEST) -

RZZEZTAFEF+_A=+—H AR
20,000,0007T (1855 7 4922,600,00078 7T) 2 iR
TEETHRMEFE 852250008 02 HE L+

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Capitalised
software
development
costs
Brand Customer EEZEX
Goodwill name list 284 Total
[k mEARE EFEE HRRA Eotc)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTHET THL FTET THL FHET
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-ZEN\E
TZA=t-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HERESE 95,907 3,388 3,924 19,025 122,244
Exchange differences ERER 6,206 170 212 1,032 7,620
Additions NE - - - 673 673
Amortisation charge BT - (2,240) (896) (4,566) (7,702)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 102,113 1,318 3,240 16,164 122,835
At 31 December 2008 RZZBENF
t=A=+-H
Cost B AR 102,113 4,520 4,520 22,625 133,778
Accumulated amortisation et - (3,202) (1,280) (6,461) (10,943)
Net book amount RHFAE 102,113 1,318 3,240 16,164 122,835
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-EThE
TZA=t+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount HURmFE 102,113 1,318 3,240 16,164 122,835
Amortisation charge BT - (1,318) (905) (4,548) 6,771)
Closing net book amount HAEmFE 102,113 - 2,335 11,616 116,064
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBERF
+=ZA=t+-H
Cost B AR 102,113 4,520 4,520 22,625 133,778
Accumulated amortisation Z:nE - (4,520) (2,185) (11,009) (17,714)
Net book amount RHFE 102,113 - 2,335 11,616 116,064
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18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continueq)

Amortisation expenses of HK$4,294,000 (2008:
HK$4,256,000) has been expensed in cost of
sales and HK$2,477,000 (2008: HK$3,446,000) in
administrative expenses.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (CGUs) identified according to operating
segment. As at 31 December 2008 and 2009, goodwill
is solely allocated to the electronic power meters and
solutions segment in Mainland China.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows within the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. Zero growth rate is assumed for cash flows
beyond the five-year period.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

Gross margin 30%
Growth rate 20-130%
Discount rate 15%

Management determined budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations
of the market development. The weighted average
growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
segment.

During the year, no intangible asset was considered
impaired by the management.

18. B EE (%)

4,294,000/ 7T (= & T )\ F : 4,256,000
BT BHEERDREEXNAZHELE
2,477,000 7T (ZZF TN\ F : 3,446,000/
TC) ZITBHAX °

EERER
BERBEB O BREMBHN 2 AEERS
EEEN R-ZBTENEFR-_ZETNFT=
A=1t—0 BEERRETERESE
EBEMNMBERTESE

.6 75 A A2 AR BB b A R 2
B - BEHEDEREREMIE 2T
T HAES R R B AR SR R BRI
SHE o BN RS T EARA it
REHITHE - DEME 2 RSNB 2
EEBRAT -

EREEAEEMRABRRRKRAT

FER = 30%
HREX 20-130%
= 15%

ERERRATRAREE T RBE Y A
BEHEEEANE o FRAZ METIOEESE
5117 8 S5 FRALIAN — B o R 2 TN
AR ERESEEE RS -

FR - ERERRBBREELEBLIME -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group's available-for-sale financial asset includes

19. I HESHEE

AEEAHEESREEBEIATERR

the following:
Group Company
rEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“E2EEAE T N\F ZBEBERE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Unlisted equity securities REBLAINZ K ET
outside Hong Kong IRARB 5 23,400 - 23,400 -

None of the financial assets is impaired.

20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND DUE FROM/(TO)

MESHMEECHIE -

200RMBAA2RERER
() B2 RFIE

SUBSIDIARIES
Company
AAT
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investments at cost, unlisted shares FE LR - IR ERK 771,357 276,186
Due from subsidiaries (Note below) A NGB e
(2 TXHiE) 121,980 446,958
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R (39,695) -
853,642 723,144
Due to a subsidiary (Note below) FEN—RM B AT HIE
(2 TxXHaE) (247,522) (35,535)
606,120 687,609
Note: Biit -

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, and
repayable on demand.
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20. 1 Ffy /8
(EAY)

\

AHZEQKEW/

B A BIIE (%)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at NZE zjli-i— A=+—H ZEfBAX
31 December 2009: AlZRE
Place of Principal activities Particulars of
incorporation and and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
ML R TEERR BRITRAR
£ FEEBERER ERIH HMEARFEE P
Emerging Technology Limited The British Virgin Islands Investment holding in PRC 7,692,308 ordinary 100%
(“BVI"), limited liability EHERSHREER shares of US$1 each
company 7,692,308 F %
RERZES BRI EE1ETZ EEkK
Grand Global International Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
company in Hong Kong US$1 each
REEZHE  BRAHE EEBRERELRR 1R G REE
1ZTZERR
Group Honour International Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% '
company in Hong Kong US$1 each
REREZHE  BRAA ERBREREER 1R GRREE
1T BB
Hi Sun (BVI) Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in 2 ordinary shares of 100% '
company Hong Kong and PRC US$1 each
RERZHEE  BRAOTE EEERPEREREER 2R EREEIETZ
EER
Hi Sun Development Hong Kong, limited liability Provision of management 2 ordinary shares of 100%
Management Limited company services in Hong Kong HK$1 each
SBEREEEERAT B ARAR ERBREEE RS 2REBREBEIATL
&k
Hi Sun Technology Bermuda, limited liability Provision of financial services 168,070,000 ordinary 100%
Holding Limited company and related products shares of
2EREERERA BREE  BRAA in Hong Kong HK$0.1 each
EREREDRRE & 168,070,000/ &%
R m HE BT EER
Max Ascent Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
company in PRC HK$1 each
BB BRARA EHBEREREZR 1REREE
1B EER

BERE (FE) ARAF
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AR
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

Principal activities

Particulars of

incorporation and and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
AR EER FTEEBR BRITRE
£ FEEBERER SR HMERFE Pt
Max Hero Group Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% '
company EEARBREER of US$1 each
HERZES  BRAAF 1REREEIRTZ
AR
New Concept Services Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in PRC 100 ordinary shares of 100% '
HMEIRBBERAF company EHERERETER US$1 each
RERZES  BRAF 1008 R EE
1E T2 EEAR
Pacific Sheen International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment Holding in PRC 3,900,000 ordinary 100%
EIEEBRBR AR company EHPBREREZER shares of HK$1 each
BE - BRAT 3,900,000/ B HEE
1B BB
Pax Data Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
BEHEERAR company in PRC HK$1 each
& BARATF EHBEREREER 1R G REE
1T BBk
PAX Electric International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of electronic power meters 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
BERENBEBEERAR company and solutions in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
& BRAR EEBHEENINEEMR 10,000/ G E E
R R 1B EER
PAX Technology, Inc. U.S.A. limited liability Sales of electronic payment 1,000 shares 60%
company products and services in U.S.A.  1,0000%
XE - BRAR EXBHES T NERRRE
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of electronic payment 26,250,000 ordinary 60%

BEMRARAT

company

EE BRAA

products and services
in Hong Kong
EEBHES T NER MRS
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shares of HK$1 each
26,250,000 EBREE
BT ERR
8,750,000 series A
preference shares
of HK$1 each
8,750,000 f&
BRAEABIETZ
RIIA BER
8,750,000 series B
preference shares
of HK$1 each
8,750,000/ F R EE
1BTTZ 25
BELR



20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20 AMIBARIZKREREW

=r
N
=
s
il
et
i
i

Place of

Principal activities

Particulars of

incorporation and and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
S AR L it 25 R TEEBK BRITRE
£ EEBERER SR HMEARFE Frs s
Perfect Ally Investments Limited Samoa, limited liability Sublicense of media rights 100 ordinary shares 75%
company in PRC of US$1 each
BEDHE  BRAOAE EHEREEREECREE 100 BREEIFETZ
EER
Success Bridge Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 9,400 shares 100% !
company in Hong Kong of US$.001 each
RERZES  BRAF EREENEREER 9,400/ Bk E 1A
0.001E T2 K fn
Turbo Speed Technology Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding in PRC 35,897,440 ordinary 100%
company ERBEEEHREER shares of
RBREUHES  BRAR US$0.1 each
35,897,440/ &%
EE0AETLZ EBR
tREBeEEEREIERAR PRC, limited liability Provision of financial and HK$100,000,000 100%
(Beijing Hi Sun Advanced company banking solutions and 100,000,000/ 7T
Business Solutions Information HE - ARAA services in PRC
Technology Limited) ERBERESRRRITEATR
KRR
It REBEEREEERMARAR PRC, limited liability Provision of telecommunication HK$80,000,000 100%
(Beijing Hi Sunsray Information company solutions, and operation 80,000,000/ 7T
Technology Limited) HE - BRAA value-added services in PRC
ERBERHEARRT R
R ERERS
TN EIEE B MAR AR PRC, limited liability Properties holding in PRC US$3,500,000 100%
Hangzhou Fushun Information company EHrBRHEME 3,500,000 7T

Technology Company Limited

FE - BRAR
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20 AMBARIZHREREWR
AND DUE FROM/(TO) (
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

=
g
%
o
Il
St
i)
&

Place of Principal activities Particulars of

incorporation and and place of issued share capital/ Interest
Name type of legal entity operation registered capital held
SRR L 3t B FTEEBR BRITRA
=g EEERER I HMERFES ks
MIMEREEREMAR AR PRC, limited liability Research & Development HK$10,000,000 100%
Hangzhou Pax Data Limited company sk 10,000,000/ 7T
HE - BRAA
AMEEETFRITARAT PRC, limited liability Manufacturing and sales of RMB50,000,000 100%
Hangzhou PAX Electronic company electronic power meters and AR#50,000,0007T
Technology Limited HE - BRAR solutions in PRC
THBRAEEREEBHITEERK
RATR
AMNEEENRMER AT PRC, limited liability Investment Holding in PRC RMB27,500,000 100%
(FIfE (MM BEEERBRAR]) company EREftEREER AR #27,500,0007T
Hangzhou PAX Electricity FE - BRAF
Technology Limited (formerly
known as “Hangzhou Baifu
Holding Company Limited”)
MMBEEEERMERAR PRC, limited liability Design of electronic power RMB3,400,000 100%
Hangzhou PAX Information company meters in PRC AR #3,400,0007T
Technology Limited HE - BRAA] EHRERTEENEEMD
WEEGREERRNE AR PRC, limited liability Provision of mobile payment HK$20,000,000 100%
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited company solutions and services 20,000,000/ 70
HE - BRAA REBB T MBI ERRS
BETEREM CRY) BRAF PRC, limited liability Sale of electronic payment HK$50,000,000 60%
PAX Computer Technology company products and services in PRC 50,000,000/ 7T

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd

FE - ARAR

! Shares held directly by the Company.

EPEHEEFINER KRS

! RRFHEERA 2D
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21.INVENTORIES 21. 78

Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Raw materials R 60,566 51,316
Work in progress E& 22,810 19,597
Finished goods B 84,182 99,150
167,558 170,063
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and BREAIRFTABEREANEFEK
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$508,509,000 7N 3#508,509,000% T (= T T )\ F:
(2008: HK$519,108,000). 519,108,000/&7T) °
22. TRADE AND OTHER 22.BEWERR K HMEWRIE - 78
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS FRERESE
AND DEPOSITS
Group Company
rEH ¥ /NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008

—E2ENF ZTT)/\F ZBTEAF ZTT)/\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
FERT FATT FERT FATT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEMBR KR (H1it(a) 291,455 328,443 - -
Less: provision for impairment & - FEU R IERE

of receivables (Note (b)) B (Witb) (13,380)  (16,021) - -
Bills receivables (Note (c)) FEW =R (Hit(c)) 107,142 161,930 - -

385,217 474,352 - -

Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - me &k
other receivables Hfth R Y ZhIE 52,588 55,808 604 359

437,805 530,160 604 359
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22. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other receivables, prepayments and deposits are
denominated in the following currencies:

2. EWIRR R EMEWREIE - 18

HREREE (&)

IRER B2 PR W BR AR e B At MR R IE - TR AR
BEREEZEEBEDATIEESE

2009 2008

—EENF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FATT

HK Dollar BT 9,000 4,815
Renminbi AR 405,292 490,583
US Dollar EIT 23,513 34,004
Euro BT - 758
437,805 530,160

Note (a): Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range from 0 to 180
days. At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of the

Hiit(a) - AR

FEBEGBTESEBAZEERHTE180ATE -
TERAFR-EENFTZRA=+—H - BYIRR

trade receivables was as follows: ZHREDTIAT
2009 2008
—EEhE T NFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Current to 90 days ENEAZEQ0R 189,770 217,517
91 to 180 days 912180H 44,547 51,539
181 to 365 days 181%365H 24,102 27,099
Over 365 days 3658 £ 33,036 32,288
291,455 328,443

AEEZHEDRABEIEZERTFEHEREEETRE
B MAREPHENEYRRBERAEEHE—
ZENF+ A=t HIEFELEENI% (2T
J\EE : 52%) o ANSR [ I 25 1) BE 5% 1A R 188 FE R
AR 2 WEIER - R L FEERRE -

The Group’s sales are made to several major customers and there
is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and services to
the top five customers contributed 54% of the Group's turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008: 52%). Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis to minimise such credit risk.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (continued)

Note (a): Trade receivables (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2009, trade receivables of HK$47,055,000
(2008: HK$48,931,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

22. FEUWRBR 7 I H it FE UL R

XH T’
HRIEREE ()

Hret(a) - ENYARE (B)

BEVEARREZ BRFIBSRETRARBERITR

HRBZBIEF c ERBERER RN EFPZE
ffé%ﬂi%*ii?(“{t R EMGRIAE R A 28
O - BERERRLZFERFETHIEREER - &
LB EISE E R ERRFIAG SR Z BTG -

RZZFEZNF+=-A=+—8 " EUKE47,055,000
BT (ZZT T )\ 4 : 48,931,000/ 7T) Ty HI{E KR
B ZERUBERZERITAOT

2009 2008

—EENF —ZETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHExT FHT

Up to 3 months =REAR 2,244 710
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 22,968 17,118
Over 6 months NEA L E 21,843 31,108
47,055 48,931

Note (b): Provision for impairment of receivables

The movement on the provision for impairment of receivables are
as follows:

Wizt () < JEY KB R (E T
FEW SRR EREEEHWT

2009 2008

—EENE —zE)F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

At 1 January w—A—H 16,021 1,615

Write-back of provision BER D (3,330) -
Provision recognised in the consolidated REEEWERANIER 2 BE

income statement 689 14,244

Receivables written-off during the year FARRETAT U E miEZ

as uncollectible JFE WK IE - (55)

Exchange difference &5 =5 - 217

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 13,380 16,021

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Ef $ERI Z FE MR R e EL A MR TR R IR RE A

W

NS A HAE S 2 & AEER R Lt & 8 ek
B ARmEE - A& I]Iﬁhﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁuuf’ﬂ%ﬁ?% °

BN (FE) ARAF —ETAEFER
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22. TRADE AND OTHER 2. BEWERAREMEWRRRIE - 78

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS HREREE (&)

AND DEPOSITS (continued)

Note (c): Bills receivables Biit(c) - EEE

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates ZEEHREIHA AL RANER 2 BRITERNER -

within six months:

The maturity profile of the bills receivable of the Group is as REBERERFBHERAT :
follows:
2009 2008
—sThE BT\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Falling within 90 days 90H A 87,606 74,910
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91£180H 19,536 87,020
107,142 161,930
As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s bills receivable amounting RZZZNFE+ZA=+—H ' xEEAHS5,717,000
to HK$5,717,000 were pledged to banks for short-term bank B2 BREEBREER TR (MEE31) - RITEKE
borrowings (Note 31). The bank borrowings were settled during REBEE-ZZNFT_A=+—HILFEREE -

the year ended 31 December 2009.
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23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY

23. B AFEFTABRNEEEZS
RMEE - AXEBERAQT

2009 2008
—EEhE —ETENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT

Listed securities: EmES
— Equity securities — U.S.A — IR ARFE S — EH 480 519
Market value of listed securities FhmEEZTE 480 519

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented in operating activities as part of changes
in working capital in the consolidated cash flow
statement (Note 33).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as other gains/
(losses), net in the consolidated income statement
(Note 5).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

AT EFAGFRERZ S EE IR
BHEREREINAKEER  EAEEER
T EfHEH) (FHFE33) °

BAFEAANGNABERZEBEERF
EEPNGakaRTHEREMKE (B
18) %8 (MEEs5) -

FTERAREF 2 R FHEIENART IS 238
TTEAERE -

24. RESTRICTED CASH 24. ZRFIFEE
Group Company
KEE b /N

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENFE ZZTT)\F ZEBLAE —ZTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET THET FHET
Restricted bank deposit 2R HIRITF K 1,740 8,612 - 7,500
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24. RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits
was 0.36% per annum. It represents deposits pledged
to the banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, of which HK$1,740,000 are kept in the
bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where

24. ZRHIBEE (@)

ZREIRITERZERFFEE0.36% ° It
DEBERTRITZFNR - WERAEEERR
1758 » 1,740,000/ T JhF IR FE AP
Bl iRITRAM CRITIRE - MABEES 2
P& J5 52 Bl HNEE & ] o

the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash are
denominated in the following currencies:

XBRHIRE 2 REETIATINEESIE

Group Company
rEHE b N/NE|

2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEhE —TTN\F ZBEBERE —ZTTN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FATT FET FATT
HK Dollar BT - 7,500 - 7,500
Renminbi ARE 1,740 1,112 - -
1,740 8,612 - 7,500

25.SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 25. BHASRITIF N

Short-term bank deposits are fixed deposits with
banks maturing between three to six months. All of
the short-term bank deposits are denominated in
RMB. They are kept in the bank accounts opened
with banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds
is subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was ranged from 0.36% to 2.25% per annum as of 31
December 2009. The deposit has an average maturity
of 202 days.
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TEHERK - ERBRITERIIUARK
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26.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RENRBETEEY

Group Company
rEH RAFH
2009 2008 2009 2008

“EBAF —TT)N\F ZBEFERE —TT)N\HF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx THETT FEx TBTT

Cash at bank and in hand RITERFLEES 1,139,974 517,261 540,836 162,407
Funds of the Group amounting to HK$460,200,000 KNEE 2 &2 +F460,200,0008 7T (ZEF
(2008: HK$238,737,000) are kept in the bank accounts J\E : 238,737,000/ 7T) * i TE AR TE
opened with banks in the PRC where the remittance B2 IRITRAM CIRITERPA - MEBESZ
of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. TEE Ty 52 B HNEE ] o

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the ReERREEEBYWIHIATINEKETE:

following currencies:

Group Company
rEH ¥ /N
2009 2008 2009 2008

“EBAF —TT)N\F ZTTRE —_TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T FER T

HK Dollar BT 427,444 99,287 328,127 54,411
Renminbi AR 421,316 225,384 - -
US Dollar e 289,965 190,168 212,709 107,996
Euro BL T 1,249 2,422 - -

1,139,974 517,261 540,836 162,407
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27.SHARE CAPITAL

27. R

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each

SR E{E0.00258 T
ZER
No. of shares HK$’000
P FATT
Authorised: JEIE
At 31 December 2008 and RZBEZEN\F+-_A=+—H

31 December 2009 NZFEENF+_A=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000

Issued and fully paid: E’ ZEITRHBE -
Opening balance at 1 January 2009 W-_ZTHAF—HF—HZ

R4S 2,231,972,835 5,580
Shares issued under share options  1RIEZAR N TS AR EET 2|

scheme of the Company (Note (a))  31TR{D (H7:% (a) 41,457,000 104
Issue of new ordinary shares ﬂﬁéﬁi‘: BR% (K1 (b))

(Note (b)) 400,000,000 1,000
At 31 December 2009 R_ZEENF+_A=1+—H 2,673,429,835 6,684
Notes: Bt -

(a) Share options of the Company (a) ARFRZBRE
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) RABBEE—IBERESE ([ZT8l]) B&
for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented sl BEBERHAEBET B EE - ABAKER

employees in order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Group’s full-time employees, and executive and
non-executive Directors. The Scheme became effective
on 29 November 2001 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10
years from that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted shall not (together with all the other schemes, if
any) exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the Company
as at date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company
obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to renew the
10% limit.
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Share options of the Company (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme, together with any
unexercised share options granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company in issue,
may not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue at any time. On 18 March 2004,
33,000,000 share options were granted to certain directors
and employees at an exercise price of HK$0.374 per share
(the average closing price of the shares as quoted in the daily
quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the five business days immediately preceding
18 March 2004) with an expiry date of 17 March 2014.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 17 August
2005, a refreshment of the limit on grant of options under
the Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders.
Upon refreshing the 10% limit on grant of options under the
Scheme, 33,305,403 shares may be issued pursuant to the
grant of further options under the Scheme.

On 26 September 2005, 33,300,000 share options were
granted to certain directors and employees at an exercise
price of HK$0.768 per share (the average closing price of
the shares as quoted in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the five
business days immediately preceding 26 September 2005)
with an expiry date of 25 September 2015. The option period
commences on 26 September 2005 and expires 10 years
thereafter.

Options granted are vested as follows:
On 26 September 2005 Up to 50%

On 26 September 2006 Up to 100%

27. A& ()

Hrat : (#8)

(a)
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AR ZBIRE ()

ZrtBIA T AR Z BB E R B AR
AR EALB IR SE T ER B MR ARITHRZ
ERBBEMS R 2 RNEE - RZETSBBIE
AR ERA QR 2 EITHBEERIEF230% ° K=
ZTME=A+N\A > FARRRAETEERES
1% 1133,000,00017 i A 48 - 1T {2 (8 & & %0.374
BT (MER-_TENF=A+N\BATREE%
HEEMARSMERARNEMZTRMRERN
Wtz FHKTE)  JHER-Z—NE=
HA++tH-

BRER-ZZRAFN\A T LRBBNERRE
% RIBEZE BRI K B IR SR AR R B
RUEER - ZETBETREBREZ10%RE
PRERE #TIR - AIARIRRZ AT B LS SMNB R 21T
33,305,403/ &1 ©

RZZZRFAAZ+HRE  ARAAETES
K fg 8 # 133,300,000 fE fx 7 - T AT LB
07688 (AEH_ZZRFAA - +/XEH
hEAEXEEEMARSMERARNEMRZER
WERMBAN 2 FOWRHE)  JHAR-T
—HFNAZTRA - BREREHA -_ZTHF
NAZ+RARE - 10FREIH -

EhzBhEsBoT

RZZETERFNAZ+"A 5%
50%
RZTZRFNAZ+"H &%
100%



27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Share options of the Company (continued)

A share subdivision in the prior years has led to an adjustment
to the exercise price of the outstanding options and the
number of shares to be issued by the Company upon
exercise of the outstanding options. For share options with
exercise period from 18 March 2004 to 17 March 2014, the
number of shares to be issued by the Company upon full
exercise of such outstanding options immediately before
the share subdivision has been increased from 23,000,000
shares to 92,000,000 shares and the exercise price has
been adjusted from HK$0.374 to HK$0.0935 per share. For
share options with exercise period from 26 September 2005
to 25 September 2015, the number of shares to be issued
by the Company upon full exercise of such outstanding
options immediately before the share subdivision has been
increased from 33,300,000 shares to 133,200,000 shares
and the exercise price has been adjusted from HK$0.768 to
HK$0.192 per share.

On 2 January 2007, 43,000,000 share options were granted
to certain employees at an exercise price of HK$2.00 per
share (the average closing price of the shares as quoted in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the five business days immediately
preceding 2 January 2007) with an expiry date of 1 January
2010.

There are no changes in any term of the Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2009.
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Share options of the Company (continued)

As at 31 December 2009, the particulars of the options
granted to each of the Directors and employees of the
Company under the Scheme are as follows:

Movements in the Share Options:

27. A& ()

Mzt - ()
(a) #HDAZBRE (E)

RZZBZNF+ZA=+—H BEZAEET
BEFERARAEE ZBRAESBET

BRELD

Number of
options
Exercise Number of held at
price after options 31 December
share held at 2009
subdivision 1 January RZBZIhE
(HK$) 2009 Granted Exercised Lapsed +=A
BRBDHE R-BEAF during during during =+—H
Name Date of grant e —BA—REE the year the year the year Fiksz
e ZEAH (Bm) zEBREZE FREREH FRETE FREXK BREZAE
Employees
(==
(In aggregate) 2 January 2007*
(#2351) —ETt+F—-A=8* 2.00 41,458,000 - (41,457,000) - 1,000
41,458,000 - (41,457,000) - 1,000
* The exercisable period of the above share options is * LiEREZITERBE_SEZELF— A
from 2 January 2007 to 1 January 2010 (both dates THEZT-TF—A—H (BEEEW

inclusive).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 41,457,000 share
options have been exercised and the weighted average
closing price immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised was HK$3.62 per share. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to purchase or settle
the option in cash. As at 31 December 2009, the Company
had 1,000 share options outstanding. On 1 January 2010,
1,000 share options have been lapsed and no share option of
the Company was outstanding at the date of this report.

AH) -

BE_ZZEAFT-_RA=+—-BLFE"
41,457,00017 BRI T (2 - T B2 B T
TTE AN B IR T (B R B AS.62/8 7T °
REE B B AR © B8 B sl BT R A 2 SR st
TEE -RZZBEAF+T-A=+—0 2AH
EHE1,0000 B HARITE - R T —FF—
HA—H 1,000 BREE R - MRAHEA
H) - AR B A R AT 2 AR -
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

Issue of new ordinary shares

On 12 May 2009, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with two subscribers in relation to the subscription
by the subscribers at a price of HK$0.75 per share of an
aggregate of 400,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.0025
each to be issued by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreement. The subscription consideration of
HK$300,000,000 was settled by the subscribers in cash and
the subscription was completed on 21 May 2009. Proceeds
from the subscription would be utilized for the development
of 3G mobile value-added solutions and services, mainly
3G mobile gaming in the PRC; the development of payment
operation services in the electronic payment market in
the United States of America; and the development of
financial solution and electronic power meters and solutions
outsourcing services; and the remaining balance as general
working capital of the Group.

Adoption of Employee Incentive Plan of a subsidiary
As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 8 April
2009. PAX Technology Limited (“PAX”) adopted an employee
incentive plan (“PAX Employee Incentive Plan”) for the
issuance of no more than 2,187,500 PAX ordinary shares
(subject to the terms of the Employee Incentive Plan and
the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules) under the
Employee Incentive Plan on 30 March 2009.

The PAX Employee Incentive Plan is designed to provide the
directors, employees, advisors and consultants of the PAX
Group with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the PAX Group, which will encourage the grantees of such
options to work towards enhancing the value of the PAX
Group and benefit the PAX Group as a whole.

During the year ended 31 December 2009 and up to date
of this report, no share option was granted under the PAX
Employee Incentive Plan.
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(b)

(c)

BITHEER

R-ZZZAFEREA+-8 ARREMBRES
RN RIERZE - REBHIRER %m#fi%om
%EZF%M 4 $£400,000,0008% # A A

BITEIRE(E0.00258 T2 H LB - f%E
AR 4 3 (< 72 88 X (8300,000,0008 7T © BER
BOR-_ZTAERA-+—A%K - RBAE
FEEREETFEREIGRBEERRTRER
fR7% - B A3GFHEE  MMERE TN
MM TELE R FESmERATRRER

SAEREMMRBRTRINERE - RBREHBER
SEz-REEES -
RN E QRS KRS

BARBBHAZSZENFHA/NB ZBEKFT
BE BEEREERAR ([BE]) BERMES
BETE ((AEREEBAE])  RZZEZA
FZA=THRBREEER@E  FTTZ2R
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28. RESERVES 28. f#
(a) Group (a) &=KH
Contributed
surplus
Share (Note(i) Other  Exchange Retained
premium BaRR reserves reserve earnings Total
RO EE (Hizta) Hinfx ERFE RERF &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FET FET

At 1 January 2008 AT N\F—A—H 548,330 168,434 34,496 40,960 257,047 1,049,267
Profit for the year EE,@%\ - - - - 114,350 114,350
Purchase of 5% equity interest Wi — R BAF5%

in a subsidiary [ - - (13,292) - - (13,292)

Exchange differences BEGINHBAT

arising on translation of g e

the financial statements of &=

foreign subsidiaries - - - 41,062 - 41,062
At 31 December 2008 RZZZN\EF

+=—A=+—H 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 371,397 1,191,387

At 1 January 2009 548,330 168,434 21,204 82,022 371,397 1,191,387
Profit for the year E¥int - - - - 85,845 85,845
Issue of new ordinary shares BT L AR

(Note 27) (Kist27) 298,880 - - - - 298,880

Disposal of 20% equity interest HE—KMBRFZ20%

in a subsidiary that does not ANt N

result in losing control of AN R

the subsidiary (Note 36) (H1:#36) - - 87,681 - - 87,581
Shares issued under share options 1R AN &) 88 A i

scheme of the Company PTG

(Note 27) (Kiito7) 82,810 - - - - 82,810
Exchange differences BEEINHB AT

arising on translation of gt

the financial statements of MEHERE

foreign subsidiaries - - - (347) - (347)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZTHhE

+ZA=+—H 930,020 168,434 108,785 81,675 457,242 1,746,156

Note: et
()  The contributed surplus of the Group represents the (i) rEBzEHRBERSGERERAT (IS

GIERR]) RRFERMAR-_ZTT—F \ANHA
ZBKFE  BIER_ET £|5+)E]+‘{:E|LTT
Z2EEEMA ((F4E)) rRBzsBERkz g

difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares and share premium account of Hi Sun Holdings
Limited (“HSHL”) acquired pursuant to the group

(i)

reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October
2001 as set out in the circular to the shareholders of
HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies' net profit to a statutory reserve fund until
such fund reaches 50% of the companies' registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilized
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the companies, provided that such fund is maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the companies' registered
capital. As at 31 December 2009, retained earnings
comprise of statutory reserve fund amounting to
HK$100,812,000 (2008:HK$74,598,000).

B (B M A i B AR - Eﬁl"”&ﬁ@ﬁ&t?&}ﬁZE%
TRMEEZ Z5

iy AFERBMEBRRRMHZ10% 5 0= ZH#E
CEHEZFBEEETZA ﬂ:fﬂﬁﬁﬂ:ZfSO%
FEERBCEEBE B AR AREERE
BENARZEMER  EZHESHEAR
BRA ﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁ$225%7k:0: RZZTNF

ToA=T—H REANIFLAEFHDE
100,812,000 7T (= F T )\ 4 : 74,598,000/8
) °
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28. RESERVES (continued) 28. f#fE (&)

(b) Company (b) AAF
Retained
earnings/
Share Contributed Other (Accumulated
premium surplus reserves losses) Total
REBF
RIEE BERRHR Htuikts  (RER) CL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THx FET TEx THEL
At 1 January 2008 RZEETN\F
—A—H 776,034 46,417 34,223 52,604 909,278
Loss for the year FEER - - - (36,508) (36,508)
At 31 December 2008 R-FENF
+=ZR=+-H 776,034 46,417 34,223 16,096 872,770
At 1 January 2009 RZETNE
—A—H 776,034 46,417 34,223 16,096 872,770
Loss for the year FEEE - - - (68,820) (68,820)
Issue of new ordinary shares BIIHME AR
(Note 27) (Hizt27) 298,380 - - - 298,880
Shares issued under RIEARR A B2
share options scheme FEIRTRG
of the Company (Note 27) (Hizt27) 82,810 - - - 82,810
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBERF
+=-A=t+-H 1,157,724 46,417 34,223 (62,724) 1,185,640
Notes: K1zt :
()  The contributed surplus of the Company represents () AARZEHRBIBREEEMPEZWEBAR

Wty AFEEARNR UL R B2 EETROEE
ZERE - REBEARE-NN-FQEE " AFF
BT HER T E S & 8 H SRR AR B R
EHDIK °

the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its
members out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumstances.

R_ETNE+-_A=+—8 AQFAHD
RTREFAAZGEE (RIEERRE - HiRE
BREEIE) 4 £27,916,0008 T (ZZT)N
fF : 96,736,000/ 7T ) °

(i)  As at 31 December 2009, the aggregate amount of (ii)
reserves available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company, including contributed surplus, other
reserves and accumulated losses, was HK$27,916,000
(2008: HK$96,736,000).
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30.

29. BEERFA R H b B FRIE

Group Company
rEE AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENFE —ZTT)\F ZEBLAE —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET
Trade payables (Note below) FETTRRFR (Mfatzn ) 201,782 186,495 -
Other payables and accruals E A AT R &
JEET /IR 133,296 119,132 13,502
Pension obligations RIRESHER 5,245 5,541 -
Social security and other taxes & {R[E & E T8 23,079 29,054 -
363,402 340,222 13,502
Note: Biat -

The carrying values of trade and other payables approximate their
fair values.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the ageing analysis of the trade

FEABR N R H b B SR IR 2 BRE (B A AP EMEE -

RECZZAFLR-_ZZENF+_A=1+—8 BNk

payables was as follows: KRBT -

Group

AEH
2009 2008
—EENE —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Current to 90 days HKRE90H 180,642 152,235
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 12,657 21,986
181 to 365 days 181£365H 988 2,414
Over 365 days 365 H 7,495 9,860
201,782 186,495

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180
days.

DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

The amount due from a related company is interest
free, unsecured, and repayable on demand. Its
carrying value approximates its fair value.

EHERR T ZEERN FOE180AZH »

30. ElRBRE X FIFR

R —REERRFESRE  EEH LR
REREN  HEREEREQFERES -

RN (FE) ARAF —EZTAEFER
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31.BORROWINGS 31. &

Group
AEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Current BN HA
Short term bank loans — PRC, WHHRITER — -
secured (Note) B (M) - 15,209
Total borrowings CEE L - 15,209
Note: Bt -

As at 31 December 2008, short term bank loans RMB 8,400,000
(approximately HK$9,492,000) were secured by the leasehold land
(Note 17) and buildings of a subsidiary of the Company (Note 16)
and the corporate guarantee from an independent third party, 73]
MEHF R EER AR A A (Shenzhen High and New Technology
Investment Guarantee Company Limited).

As at 31 December 2008, short term bank loans of RMB 5,059,000
(approximately HK$5,717,000) were secured by the bills receivable
of a subsidiary of the Company (Note 22).

RZZENF+ZR=+—H ' AR#¥8,400,0007T
(#99,492,000/%8 L) 2 M HASRITERBA QR AIMBE A
AlzME L (Mis17) REF (sk16) ARk —2%8
NEZFFRYT e EINIRERERERARZARE
TRV -

RZZBEENF+=_A=+—H  AR#¥5,059,0007T
(#95,717,000/8 ) 2 GHRIRITE AR R A — KM
BA R 2 EREIR R (FE22) -

The maturity of borrowings is as follows: BRZEEBANT
Group
£33
Bank borrowings
RWITER
2009 2008
—RERF —BENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FABT
Within 6 months NEAR - 8,429
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F - 6,780
- 15,209
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31. BORROWINGS (continued) 3. B &)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date NEEHZERFRET
were as follows:

2009 2008
—EZhEF —TENF
Renminbi Renminbi
ARME AR
per annum per annum
=23 (SEaS
Short term bank borrowings R HRIRITIE X - 6.30%
The carrying amounts of the borrowings as at 31 RZZEZENF+TA=+—0  BXEEE
December 2008 were denominated in RMB. IARKSIE -
As at 31 December 2008, a bank guarantee line of RZZEZENFTZA=1T—8  ~EEER
HK$7,500,000 was provided to the Group, which was 2 $RITIR 58 A7,500,00078 7T 1t oA
secured by fixed deposits of the Company at a bank RNA B —KRTT 2 7E BI1F 7,500,000/
of HK$7,500,000 and corporate guarantee by the TCr MERARR R Z ARIEREDER (Wi
Company (Note 24). 24) o
As at 31 December 2009, banking facilities of RZZEZNF+_A=+—HB  FxEEEX
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$22,600,000) A R #20,000,0007T (4722,600,0007% JT)
was provided to the Group which was secured by ZIRITEEBEAARNB AR CHE LM
the leasehold land and building of a subsidiary of the MIEFERE (FFE16%17) °
Company (Note 16 and 17).
The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings CHE R REEEE AT ERE °

approximate their fair values.
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32.DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

32.IEEIBH
EEETCENAIBREHIBEEMIRARIE
BERE BELTEMESHR S NRE— B B
B BIA B REFMSHEEHEGELAK
i o ST

2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAETT
Deferred tax assets to be recovered +-@ER A FERE 2
within 12 months BB B E (355) (316)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled +-AAREZ
within 12 months FIERIBEE 126 87
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled +-@AA®BERNZ
after 12 months ELEFHBEAE 2,855 6,870
Deferred tax liabilities — net BEERIEEE — F5 2,626 6,641
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities FN - BHERBHRERAEE 2 &5 E A
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation Al BEBIEEERGEZEEHOT
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
2009 2008
—EENE —EENEF
Accelerated Accelerated
tax  Fair value tax Fair value
depreciation gains depreciation gains
& E AF Total MEFIE NS Total
wE ELE At neE BEE X
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET THET THET FHL FHL FET
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE
At 1 January m—A—H 87 6,870 6,957 119 11,522 11,641
Exchange differences 5 =% - - - - 599 599
Charged/(credited) to BiralasEnk
consolidated income statement (7t ) 39 (2,112) (2,073) (32) (3,072) (3,104)
Effect of change in tax rate RS FbZ - (1,903) (1,903) - 2,179) 2,179)
At 31 December R+-A=+-H 126 2,855 2,981 87 6,870 6,957
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

32.IEEMMBH (&)

Tax losses
HiEEE
2009 2008
—EZThEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAETT
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
At 1 January w—HA—H (316) (119
Exchange differences b 5 =28 - @)
Credited to consolidated Biralamk
income statement A (39) (1995)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (355) (316)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related benefits through the future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of HK$179,287,000(2008:
HK$86,485,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses have not been recognised
due to uncertainty of their future recoverability. The
tax losses will expire according to the prevailing tax
laws and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$34,941,000
have not been recognised as of 31 December 2009
(2008:HK$16,245,000) for the withholding tax and
other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the companies comprising the Group.
Unremitted earnings totaled HK$874,675,000 at 31
December 2009 (2008:HK$638,809,000).

BT EETAEMBBETN R B EER
HiEERBRFEE Mg o HIBEEE
EER - BE-_ZTENF+=-_A=+—8
REEZ RERHIEEE R179,287,000/8
T (ZZZT )N\ F 86,485,000/ 70) * A 45
B U GE AR FEER B - AR RAERETE £
MBI TAE B EE B A R BB - B R
MATEEE o WERIEBEZHBHERER
SEKERR 2ERBERBROIME

RZETZNFE+T_A=+—H8 TARAE
EiE TR B RARE L ZRFEHRNOTENR &
H {th £ TE T R IR IE P15 B & 534,941,000
Br(Z T T )\ F 16,245,000 JT) °
TEEAF+-_A=+—8 KEHEF
& & B874,675,0008 T (Z T ZT N\ F -
638,809,000/ 7T ) °
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33.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B.ZERERERME

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (a) BRABHAIGANEKEELEZRSY
cash generated from operations iR
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Profit before income tax BR P15 25 A 42 A 143,766 176,553
Interest income FEWA (7,598) (4,400)
Depreciation of property, Y R MRIETE
plant and equipment 40,565 39,159
Depreciation of investment property & &¥ZEIrE 108 109
Amortisation of leasehold land THE £ 5 1,094 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 6,771 7,702
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BENEE
plant and equipment MHEE i EE
and leasehold land 107 905
(Write-back of provision)/ FEUBR ZORE (B BE),~
provision for impairment B ¥8
of trade receivables, net (2,641) 14,244
Write-off of inventories, net WiEEE - R 4,539 22,056
Finance costs A& A AR 464 1,544
Operating profit before LEESE A 2L HET
working capital changes 187,175 258,942
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JFEE 5T Bl 5% B2 EL th B UK
other receivables, prepayments BN FERZE R /
and deposits (=) 94,996 (138,856)
Increase in inventories FEEm (2,034) (563,538)
Decrease in financial assets at BRFER ARk EE
fair value through profit or loss LEREERD 39 33,969
Decrease/(increase) in amount due  JEUW—ZK @& N 71 NIE
from a related company B (3G n) 1,176 (65)
Increase in trade and other payables JFE 1~ BR 3k fz E {th FE (1B
N 23,180 38,733
Cash generated from operations REEXE RS 304,532 139,185
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33.NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

BP.EERERERME )

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from (b) RREREXRA HEVE BEK
sale of property, plant and equipment and RERHETAESRENT
leasehold land comprise:

2009 2008

—EENF —EE)N\F

HK$°’000 HK$’000

FHERT FET

Net book amount (Notes 16 and 17) BREFE (A1:716517) 1,947 2,213
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BERRE

plant and equipment and MEE L EE

leasehold land (107) (905)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BE & &1E
plant and equipment and NS TS EoE

leasehold land 1,840 1,308

34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34.HREE

As at 31 December 2009, the Group and the Company RZZEZANF+-_A=+—H A&KEKEAKX

had no contingent liabilities (2008: Nil). REWESABE (ZETNF | &) -

35.O0PERATING LEASE 35. E A AR
COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2009, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

RZZBZENF+ZA=+—H  AEERT
A RGHE S AR TR R EHEENRAE

operating leases as follows: BN
Land and buildings
T REF
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Not later than one year TER—F 15,430 5,034
Later than one year and not later BR—% - BB
than five years RAF 6,617 3,490
22,047 8,524
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36. DISPOSAL OF 20% EQUITY

INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

AND ADOPTION OF PAX SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

On 30 March 2009, PAX Technology Limited
(“PAX”) (an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with the Company, Dream River Limited
(the “Purchaser”) and Hi Sun Technology Holding
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Transferor”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the
8,750,000 PAX ordinary shares (the “Sale Shares”)
held by the Transferor, and the Transferor has
conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Shares to the
Purchaser at the consideration of US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$155.4 million) (the
“Disposal”). Immediately upon registration of the Sale
Shares in the name of the Purchaser, the Sale Shares
shall be re-designated as the PAX Series B preference
shares on a one-to-one basis and those PAX Series
B preference shares shall represent 20% of the
total issued share capital of PAX. The Disposal was
completed on 29 April 2009.

PAX also adopted a PAX Share Option Scheme for
the issuance of such number of PAX ordinary shares
representing no more than 5% of the total number of
PAX shares in issue immediately after the completion
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

Total consideration received (net of expenses directly
attributable to the Disposal) in cash was HK$153.74
million. The difference of HK$87.58 million between
the net proceeds from the Disposal and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests of HK$66.16
million has been recognised directly in equity.
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. i
Kk E = B IR 2

zﬂ(fﬁ J)<ZIS ﬂZFﬁ?ﬂhéﬁﬁﬁ%
a)) E A A] » Dream River Limited ([ &
F) EARRIzEEZENBRARSEE
BIERBRAR ([EEADILEBKREE
Enz ((BEEH=ZED - Bt EABEBKRGY
REBE&EEARFEAE 8,750,000k 8 =5 X
Ak (THERNKD])  MEREAEBRERE
mMEHFEEHEERMD - KE /20,000,000
F 7T (M= R #9155,400,000 7o) ([ H &
RIF]) c ZEEHERNHUE A BREERLE -
HERMDBE—H—EEEFHIETEEER
FIBELER  ZEB=ERIBEEREES
EEBITIRAZ20% - HEEHEEN-Z
SHAEMA -+ NBRK o

BE IR E = RRERE - ARITIEE
EREEHETRRECETAERNEH

5%Z§EEI o p o

B sRERERE (NMEREHEEEEERE
G2 B%) /&153,740,000/8 7T - HEEIA
IR RSB TR ER SR
66,160,000/ T Z # %887,580,000/8 7T B
HEERERPER



37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As at 31 December 2009, the Group is controlled

by Rich Global Limited (incorporated in British Virgin
Islands), which owns 23.08% of the Company’s
shares. The remaining 76.92% of the shares are
widely held.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties during the
year:

The Group has no significant transaction with
related parties during the year (2008: Nil).

Year end balances with related parties are
as follows:

IN.BEARS
RZEZNF+_A=+—8 A£EH
R B R X B B i it 5 32 ZRich Globall
Limited#s &l » 322 &) %A 42 7)23.08% %
M R T76.92%RMEAARALIFE ©

(a) FRHEMBELIRS :

AEERFARBETNEAREIRS (=
ZTN\F: E) -

(b) RBEEFEBZFREMERUOT !

2009 2008
—BBRE  -TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Receivable from a related company:  FEU—KBFE QN FIFIE ¢
Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power treEEAENER
Information Technology Ltd. (Note) HiTER AT (B1:t) - 1,176

Note:

ItREBEE AT NEERMER AR (Beiing Hi Sun Electric
Power Information Technology Limited), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

The balances with related parties were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

During the years ended 31 December 2008
and 2009, key management compensation
is equivalent to the Directors’ emolument as
disclosed in Note 9.

trEEE AT EERITERARARARE
ZRYEHi Sun Limitedz 2 &M B A& -

HEETZEHRREEAR  REER
RERTE -

(c) XEEEBEAEHE
HE_ZZ)N\FE_ZTTNhF+_A
—t+—HIEFE FEEEASHEE
HERKEFFMEEZEEME -

RN (FE) ARAF —EZTAEFER
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

(b)

Disposal and Issue of Convertible Preference
Shares of Success Bridge Limited

On 24 December 2009, the Company and Wise
World Group Limited, an independent party
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a conditional
subscription agreement, pursuant to which
Success Bridge Limited (“Success Bridge”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, shall
issue and the Subscriber shall subscribe for
600 convertible preference shares of US$0.001
each in the share capital of Success Bridge (the
"SBL Preference Shares") at a total consideration
of US$60 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$465 million) (the “Subscription”). The SBL
Preference Shares represent 6.0% of the issued
share capital of Success Bridge as enlarged
by the Subscription. Detailed terms of the
Subscription are set out in the Company’s
circular to the shareholders dated 8 January
2010.

The Subscription was completed on 29 January
2010.

Acquisition of Mega Hunt Investments Limited
On 26 January 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, New Concept Services Limited
(“New Concept”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Rich Giant Investments
Limited (“Rich Giant”) and Ms. Wang Lina,
independent third parties, pursuant to which
Rich Giant agreed to sell and New Concept
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Mega Hunt Investments
Limited (“Mega Hunt”) for the consideration of
25 new shares of US$1 each of New Concept
to be allotted and issued to Rich Giant. The
new shares represent 20% of the issued share
capital of New Concept as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of shares. The acquisition
was completed on 5 March 2010.
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3. AEHEEHE

(@)

(b)

HE K 24TSuccess Bridge Limited
BRREER

NN A)ER¥E N 8 = 757 Wise World Group
Limited ([REAL) RZZEZTNF+
A+ HATIEKGRE R
B - NAR)Z 2 &M A RISuccess
Bridge Limited ([Success Bridge])
JAE 1T SR B A B R BE600/%Success
Bridgei& A~ # & % [ 180.001% 7T Z
Al 2 B% (B 5t IR ([SBLE & i) - 4
K {8 /60,000,000% 7t (48 & K 4
465,000,000/ 7T) ([ B8 F 1|H]) -
SBL{E %A% {5 Success Bridgei& 2 =
HEN B2 BBEITIRA6.0% - RIESE
B BERERNARTR_E—ZF
—ANBHFETREZBE -

RBEERN _T-—ZTF-A-TNA=
B o

W EEMega Hunt Investments Limited
NR-ZE—ZFTF—A=+"8 ' ~xAF
ZEEMBARFHARBERRAF
([# &l]) ERich Giant Investments
Limited ([Rich Giant]) KRB E =7
Wang LinaZ +5]37 B Bk - iR -
Rich Giant[® & H &M elE &R =
B EMega Hunt Investments Limited
([Mega Hunt]) 22 #THRA - 1
fELAMRIch Giantfd 3 & 2172508 ¥ 8l
RAPEREEIETZHRD © ¥
MIEFBISEERBITROBREZ
BEEITRAZ20% - WEE R T —
TZRAAHREK -



38.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

(c) Proposed spin-off and separate listing of
the transaction data capture terminals and
solutions businesses
On 15 March 2010, the Company announced its
intention to spin-off the transaction data capture
terminals and solutions businesses, including
EDC-POS terminal business and electronic
meter business (the “Transaction Data Capture
Terminals and Solutions Businesses”) on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (the “Proposed Spin-
off”). The Proposed Spin-off is subject to the
approval of the Company's shareholders and the
Stock Exchange.

39. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-classified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

These reclassifications have no impact on the Group’s
total equity as at both 31 December 2008 and 2009,
or on the Group’s profit for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 2009.

3.&EEHEEHE (»)
(c) BEBEZ5SBIEKELREE @RS
BERSFREB LT

RZZE—ZFTF=A+HA ARAE
1 32 5 37 32 5 B UK 5 4% i I fiR R
FRER (BEE TR ER R
BREFEERER) [ RIBBERELR
i M RR T RER ) RBEBBER
SRABARAR (BT EREBE
m((EEaHFLEm]) - BEHF L™
BEBARRNRIRE R AT 2 #A -

39. L EF
HETLHEEFETEY - WEAFEZ 275
—3k o

REEFHRYAEEAN-_SE\FR-F
TAE+ZA=+—AZBEQERFEE
BE-_TT\FR-FTAFT-A=1—
FLH 4R 2 S R AT (TR o
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ik AR BRI B MR RIRERBRAEH AN
AEBBREREVRFED RRE FENES
BEEHEBEMELNT -

A summary of the published consolidated results and of
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited

financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set

as below:
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EEhF —ETENF —ETLF ZEERF “EERF
Continuing Continuing Continuing Continuing Continuing
operations operations operations operations Operations
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET FHET FAET FET
Results E
Profit attributable to R FE ARG
equity holders 85,845 114,350 184,276 133,600 62,304
Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets BEE 2,318,330 1,668,616 1,490,745 847,110 313,741
Total liabilities BERE (402,554) (403,947) (389,885) (167,438) (186,307)
Capital and reserves AARERFEA
attributable to the FEAG AR A K 1
Company’s equity holders 1,752,840 1,196,967 1,054,847 679,672 127,434
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